BROMLEY CIVIC CENTRE, STOCKWELL CLOSE, BROMLEY BRI 3UH

TELEPHONE: 020 8464 3333 CONTACT: Philippa Gibbs
philippa.gibbs@bromley.gov.uk

DIRECT LINE: 020 8461 7638
FAX: 020 8290 0608 DATE: 5 September 2016

THE LONDON BOROUGH
www.bromley.gov.uk

To: Members of the
EDUCATION SELECT COMMITTEE

Councillor Nicholas Bennett J.P. (Chairman)

Councillor Neil Reddin FCCA (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors Kathy Bance MBE, Kim Botting FRSA, Alan Collins, Mary Cooke,
Judi Ellis, Ellie Harmer and Chris Pierce

Church Representatives with Voting Rights
Mary Capon and Joan McConnell

Parent Governor Members with Voting Rights
Emmanuel Arbenser and Mylene Williams, 1 x Parent Governor Representative
(vacancy)

Non-Voting Co-opted Members
Tajana Reeves, (Young People’s Representative)
Alison Regester, (Pre-school Settings and Early Years Representative)

A meeting of the Education Select Committee will be held at Committee Rooms -
Bromley Civic Centre on THURSDAY 15 SEPTEMBER 2016 AT 7.00 PM

MARK BOWEN
Director of Corporate Services

Paper copies of this agenda will not be provided at the meeting. Copies can
be printed off at hitp://cds.bromley.gov.uk/. Any member of the public
requiring a paper copy of the agenda may request one in advance of the
meeting by contacting the Clerk to the Committee, giving 24 hours notice
before the meeting.

Items marked for information only will not be debated unless a member of the
Committee requests a discussion be held, in which case please inform the
Clerk 24 hours in advance indicating the aspects of the information item you
wish to discuss

All Committee Members are invited to the Preparation Meeting
which will take place from 6.30pm in the Committee Rooms
at the Civic Centre.



http://cds.bromley.gov.uk/

10

11

AGENDA

PART 1 (PUBLIC) AGENDA

Note for Members: Members are reminded that Officer contact details are shown on
each report and Members are welcome to raise questions in advance of the meeting.

STANDARD ITEMS

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS
EDUCATION SELECT COMMITTEE CO-OPTED MEMBERS 2016/17 (Pages 5 - 8)
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

MINUTES OF THE EDUCATION SELECT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 25
MAY 2016 (Pages 9 - 18)

RESPONSES TO THE FIRST REPORT OF THE EDUCATION SELECT
COMMITTEE (Pages 19 - 62)

REVIEW OF SELECT COMMITTEE PROCESS
Discussion led by Chairman

QUESTIONS TO THE SELECT COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN FROM MEMBERS OF
THE PUBLIC AND COUNCILLORS ATTENDING THE MEETING

To hear questions to the Committee received in writing by the Democratic Services
Team by 5.00pm on Friday 9" September 2016 and to respond. Questions must
relate to the work of the Select Committee.

QUESTIONS TO THE PORTFOLIO HOLDER FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC
AND COUNCILLORS ATTENDING THE MEETING

To hear questions to the Portfolio Holder received in writing by the Democratic
Services Team by 5.00pm on Friday 9™ September 2016 and to respond. Questions
must relate to the work of the Portfolio.

PORTFOLIO HOLDER UPDATE
EDUCATION SELECT COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 63 - 66)

SELECT COMMITTEE CONSIDERATION

PURPOSE OF MEETING

“To examine the efficiency and effectiveness of alternative education in Bromley.”



12

13

14

WRITTEN EVIDENCE:

a OVERVIEW OF ALTERNATIVE EDUCATION IN BROMLEY (Pages 67 - 72)
b  WRITTEN STATEMENT FROM HOME EDUCATOR (Pages 73 - 76)

c HOME EDUCATION ARTICLE FROM THE TIMES MAGAZINE JULY 2016
(Pages 77 - 80)

d  ARTICLE - CALL TO REVIEW HOME SCHOOL RULES - THE MUNICIPAL
JOURNAL- 4 AUGUST 2016 (Pages 81 - 82)

ALTERNATIVE EDUCATION WITNESS SESSION:

(@) Neil Miller, Headteacher, Bromley Beacon Academy and Bromley Trust
Academy

(b) Jenny MacDonald, Senior Education Welfare Officer, LBB

(c) Debbie Partington, Lead Teacher for Home and Hospital Tuition, LBB
(d) Kevin Grant, Home Tutor, Alternative Education and Welfare, LBB
COMMITTEE CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

DATES OF FUTURE EDUCATION SELECT COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Tuesday 17" January 2017
Thursday 23" March 2017




This page is left intentionally blank



Agenda Item 2

Report No. London Borough of Bromley
CSD16114

PART ONE - PUBLIC

Decision Maker: EDUCATION SELECT COMMITTEE

Date: Thursday 15 September 2016

Decision Type: Non-Urgent Non-Executive Non-Key

Title: EDUCATION SELECT COMMITTEE CO-OPTED MEMBERS
2016/17

Contact Officer: Philippa Gibbs, Democratic Services Officer

Tel: 020 8461 7638 E-mail: Philippa.Gibbs@bromley.gov.uk
Chief Officer: Director of Corporate Services

Ward: All Wards

1. Reason for report

Members are asked to confirm Co-opted Membership appointments to the Education PDS
Committee for 2015/16.

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1 That the following Parent Governor Representative appointments be made to the
Education PDS Committee for 2016/17 with voting rights:

e Ms Mylene Williams, Primary Parent Governor
e Emmanuel Arbenser, Special School Parent Governor
NB: The position for Secondary Parent Governor Representative is currently vacant.

2.2 Mrs Mary Capon representing the Church of England and Mrs Joan McConnell
representing the Roman Catholic Church be appointed as Co-opted Members to the
Education PDS Committee for 2016/17 with voting rights;

2.3 The following Education PDS Co-opted Membership appointments be made to the
Education PDS Committee for 2016/17 without voting rights:

e Mrs Alison Regester as Pre-School Settings Representative

e Miss Tajana Reeves as Young Peoples Representative

1 Page 5



Corporate Policy

1. Policy Status:Existing Policy: Co-opted Membership at relevant PDS Committees is encouraged
given the added value that Co-opted Membership can bring to a PDS Committee's work

2. BBB Priority: Children and Young People:

Financial

1. Cost of proposal: Not Applicable:

2. Ongoing costs: Not Applicable:

3. Budget head/performance centre: Democratic Services
4. Total current budget for this head: £335,590

5.  Source of funding: N/A

Staff

1. Number of staff (current and additional): 8 posts (7.27fte)

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours: N/A

Legal

1. Legal Requirement: Statutory Requirement: The Parent Governor Representatives (England)
Regulations 2001 require the election of a minimum of two and a maximum of five Parent
Governors to any Education Overview and Scrutiny Committee. DfEE Circular 19/99 contains a
specific direction of the Secretary of State under section 499 of the Education Act 1996
requiring local authorities in England to appoint representatives of the Church of England and
the Roman Catholic Church to their Committees dealing with education.

2.  Call-in: Not Applicable:

Customer Impact

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected): Not Applicable

Ward Councillor Views

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? Not Applicable

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments: Not Applicable

2 Page 6



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

COMMENTARY

Co-opted Membership for 2016/17

Under the terms of DfES Circular 19/99 both the Church of England and the Roman Catholic
Church are entitled to representation on any Committee which exists to oversee and scrutinise
the Executive’s education decisions. Mrs Mary Capon will represent the Church of England
Rochester Diocesan Board of Education and Mrs Joan McConnell will represent the Roman
Catholic Archdiocese of Southwark Commission for Schools and Colleges.

Under the terms of the Parent Governor Representatives (England) Regulations 2001, the
Council must provide for the election of a minimum of two and a maximum of five Parent
Governors to any Education Overview and Scrutiny Committee. Following a School Governor
Election in July 2016, Ms Mylene Williams and Mr Emmanuel Arbenser were elected as Parent
Governor Representatives on the Education PDS Committee for a term of two years. No
nominations were received for the position of Secondary School Representative.

Mrs Alison Regester has indicated that she is willing to serve a further term as the Pre-School
Settings and Early Years Representative for a term of one year.

Bromley Youth Council has nominated Miss Tajana Reeves as the representative for Young
People on the Committee for a term of one year.

Role of Co-opted Members

Co-opted Members bring their own area of interest and expertise to the work of a PDS
Committee. Co-opted Members often represent the interests of key groups within a Portfolio
and co-option to a Committee can ensure that their views are taken into account on issues.
They broaden the spectrum of involvement in the PDS process and make the intrusion of party
politics into scrutiny proceedings more difficult.

Non-Applicable Sections: | Policy Implications, Financial Implications, Legal
Implications, Personnel Implications

Background Documents: Not Applicable
(Access via Contact
Officer)

3 Page 7



This page is left intentionally blank



Agenda ltem 4

EDUCATION SELECT COMMITTEE

Minutes of the meeting held at 7.00 pm on 25 May 2016

Present:

Councillor Nicholas Bennett J.P. (Chairman)

Councillor Neil Reddin FCCA (Vice-Chairman)
Councillors Kathy Bance MBE, Kim Botting, Alan Collins,
Judi Ellis, Chris Pierce and Stephen Wells

Mary Capon and Joan McConnell
Tajana Reeves and Alison Regester

Also Present:
Myleen Williams, Parent Governor Representative

Councillor Peter Fortune, Councillor Tom Philpott and Mylene
Williams
Jane Bailey, Director of Education, LBB
Mrs Jo Brinkely, Executive Headteacher and CEO, Spring
Partnership Trust
Mrs Sam Parrett, Principal and CEO, Bromley College

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF
SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Ellie Harmer and
Councillor Wells attended as substitute. Councillor Cooke also sent her
apologies.

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Nicholas Bennett JP declared that he was a Governor of Bromley
College of Further and Higher Education and of Southborough Primary
School.

Councillor Kathy Bance declared that she had grandchildren in 6 Bromley
Schools.

Councillor Judi Ellis declared that she was a Governor of Riverside School
and Midfield Primary School, that her son was the Head teacher of Biggin Hill
Primary School and that she had two grandchildren attending Tubbenden
Primary School.

Page 9



Education Select Committee
25 May 2016

Councillor Peter Fortune declared that his wife was a teacher at an academy
in the Borough.

Councillor Tom Philpott declared that he was an employee of Pearson
Education Plc.

Councillor Neil Reddin declared that he had children who attended a school in
the Borough and that his wife was a Governor of two primary schools in the
Borough.

Mrs Mary Capon, Church representative, declared that she was an employee
of the Aquinas Church of England Education Trust, that her husband was a
governor at Newstead Wood and her daughter attended Newstead Wood

Mrs Joan McConnell, Church representative, declared that she was a
Governor of St Joseph’s Catholic Primary School.

Mrs Alison Regester, Pre-School Settings and Early Years representative,
declared that she ran a private day nursery in the Borough.

Mrs Mylene Williams, Parent Governor representative, declared that she was

a Governor of St Paul's Cray C.E. Primary School and that she had a child
who attended St Paul's Cray C.E. Primary School.

3 MINUTES OF THE EDUCATION PDS COMMITTEE MEETING
HELD ON 8 MARCH 2016 AND MATTERS ARISING

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 8" March 2016 be

agreed and that matters outstanding be noted.

4 QUESTIONS TO THE SELECT COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN FROM
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND COUNCILLORS ATTENDING
THE MEETING

There were no questions.

5 QUESTIONS TO THE PORTFOLIO HOLDER FROM MEMBERS OF
THE PUBLIC AND COUNCILLORS ATTENDING THE MEETING

There were no questions.
6 EDUCATION SELECT COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME
Report ED16035

The Committee considered its work plan for the 2016/17 municipal year. It
was agreed that for the meeting on 15 September 2016 the Committee would

Page 10



Education Select Committee
25 May 2016

consider Child Safeguarding and the recent outcome of the Ofsted Inspection
into Children’s Services (this would be a joint item with the Care Services
PDS Committee).

The following issues were identified for consideration for the remainder of the
year:

January 2017

SEND Update
Helping Under Performing Schools

March 2017

Missing Children (NEET)
Home Education

RESOLVED: That the Work Programme for 2016/17 be agreed and
the school schools visits undertaken in the Spring Term
2015/16be noted.

7 PORTFOLIO HOLDER UPDATE

The Portfolio Holder gave an update to Members on work being undertaken
across the Education Portfolio. In providing a brief review of his first year in
office, the Portfolio Holder highlighted that a number of challenges had been
tackled in 2015/16 notable the Youth Offending Service which had just
received a positive report following the mock inspection of the Youth Justice
Board. A number of difficult decisions had needed to be taken in relation to
the provision of Adult Education however a lot a positive work had been done
and a new curriculum was now being developed.

Focusing on the year head, the Portfolio Holder reported that there would be a
requirement to take different decisions in 2016/17. The Local Authority would
have to consider the shape of the services that it provided in the future and
the best way to deliver those services. This would present the opportunity to
work with departments across the Authority. Communication would need to
be a key priority for the year.

The Portfolio Holder highlighted that decisions surrounding the provision of
Education would be guided by the Government’'s White Paper. In the white
Paper, the success of the London Borough of Bromley in driving the academy
agenda had been acknowledged. In addition to this, good feedback had been
received about SEN provision. The Portfolio Holder concluded his update by
stressing that the year ahead would be busy with the transformation of the
provision of educational services.

Page 11



Education Select Committee
25 May 2016

In response to questions from Members of the Committee, the Portfolio
Holder confirmed that in relation to the Beckenham Society, the applicants
were currently in the second phase of the pre-application stage, no formal
application had been submitted. The applicants were also working with
residents. In relation to Langley Park and Eden one of the key challenges
had been communication around making land available. The White Paper
issued by the Government had made it clear that suitable land had to be
made available for education. This was an internal challenge faced by the
Local Authority and if the Council was unable to identify suitable land itself the
Government would intervene.

In response to a question from the Chairman, the Director of Education
reported that she believed that the admissions criteria for Langley Primary
Free School would be based on the permanent location of the school, not its
temporary location whilst building work is ongoing.

In response to a question from a Member the Director of Education reported
that a good relationship with the Regional Schools Commissioner had been
built. The London Borough of Bromley found itself in a unique position to feed
its learning and experience back to the Regional Schools Commissioner and
the Department for Education.

8 THE EDUCATION LANDSCAPE IN BROMLEY - PRESENTATION
Report ED16034

The Chairman was pleased to welcome the Director of Education, Mrs Sam
Parrett, Principal and CEO of Bromley College, and Mrs Jo Brinkley, CEO and
Executive Headteacher of the Spring Partnership Trust to the meeting. The
Committee had before them a report which provided an overview of education
and the Education Services Department within the London Borough of
Bromley. The report provided background information and context on the
education landscape within Bromley highlighting the key priorities and policies
of the teams within the Education Department. In addition to this, Mrs Parrett
had provided to the Committee some background information on Bromley
College and Mrs Brinkley had provided a report on the Spring Partnership
Trust.

The Director of Education and Mrs Parrett also gave comprehensive
presentations to the Committee.

Mrs Jane Bailey, Director of Education and Clir Peter Fortune, Portfolio Holder
for Education

Following the presentation to the Committee by the Director of Education, a
guestion and answer session was held with the following themes emerging:

Page 12



Education Select Committee
25 May 2016

Statutory Responsibilities of the Local Authority

The Director of Education reported that she anticipated that the statutory
duties of the Local Authority would reduce however, the Local Authority would
retain responsibility for safeguarding. In relation to this duty all schools had a
duty to co-operate with the Local Authority. The Children’s Safeguarding
Board would retain its responsibilities and the Local Authority would be
looking at how the system could be strengthened. Recently a Primary
Headteacher and a Secondary Headteacher had joined the Board and it was
considered that this would help to develop and enhance relationships moving
into the future.

The Committee noted that Appendix 3 to the reported provided by the Director
of Education was a review of statutory duties and outlined the duties which
the Local authority was likely to retain and those that would transfer to other
bodies.

In terms of developing close co-operation with both academies and the
Regional Schools Commissioner, the Director of Education emphasised the
importance of working in partnership and developing robust relationships in
order to share information. To this end, good communication would be key. It
was not anticipated that the resolution of any issues that could arise would be
driven through statute.

The Portfolio Holder emphasised that this was very much an evolving process
and that as a leader in the field of academy conversions the London Borough
of Bromley would need to be pro-active in feedback back to the Department
for Education any policy issues as they arise.

Nursery Provision

The Director of Education reported that the White Paper did not comment on
Early Years provision as its focus was statutory provision however the Local
Authority was awaiting the White Paper relating to Early Years. It was
anticipated that any impact for early years would be around funding reforms.

In relation to the concerns that had been raised surrounding the proposals for
extending nursery provision at a fixed rate, taking no account of the variation
in the quality and quantity of facilities, the Director of Education confirmed that
the intention was to extend free nursery provision for 3 year olds from 15
hours to 30 hours per week. The Local Authority shared the concerns of the
providers about how this would be delivered and Bromley Council had
provided a response to the consultation. The Director of Education reported
that she understood that the providers were responding on their own behalf.

Mrs Regester, representative for Early Years, reported that guidance that had
been received indicated that providers would not be compelled to offer the
additional 15 hours free provision. It was possible that, in light of the
guidance, a number of providers in the Borough would not offer the additional
hours and this could be a particular challenge for Bromley.

5
Page 13



Education Select Committee
25 May 2016

Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) Provision

The Director for Education highlighted that Bromley was a Pathfinder Local
Authority in this area. As a result of this status a great deal of work had
already taken place with parents being fully involved. There now had to be an
emphasis that Education, Care and Health Plans were for those with complex
needs who fell within the criteria that the title suggested and this would require
a shift in culture. There was a strong SENCO Forum within the Borough and
this was very helpful in enabling learning and the sharing of policy and
strategy. The priority of the Local Authority had to be early intervention,
working with SENCOs to ensure that they were able to identify young people
that required additional help and support.

The Director of Education reported that within the Borough there were
approximately 8,000 children with an identified need and of these
approximately 1,600 had a statement or health plan. There were 48 children
in specialist out-of-borough provision. There was a clear focus on keeping as
many as possible in borough and this would require ensuring that there was a
fit-for-purpose offer for some of the more complex young people residing
within the Borough.

In relation to SEN Transport, the Director of Education reported that Officers
were continually looking at ways to manage the SEN Transport budget
efficiently.  The Portfolio Holder highlighted the importance of ensuring that
as many children with EHC plans/statements are educated within the
Borough, and in doing so keeping children near their homes and thus keeping
transport costs to a minimum.

Faith Schools

The Director of Education confirmed that she was aware of the desire of the
Catholic Community to have a Catholic secondary school in the Borough.
Any new school would now have to be approved through the new Free School
process. The Chairman noted that it has been indicated that the Government
may change the current restriction on the number of pupils which the Church
could require to be practising adherents. This could mean that the Catholic
Bishops may review their position on new schools. It was noted that in the
successful appeal against planning permission for new homes at the former
All Saints School site a commitment was made by the Archdioceses that the
proceeds of the sale of the land would be used for Bromley pupils.

School Places

In relation to ensuring that there was planning for a sufficient number of
school places, the Director of Education reported that Officers were working
closely with the Education Funding Agency (EFA). The Education White
Paper had made it clear that if Local Authorities failed to established enough
school places the Government would intervene however no information had
been provided concerning what form any intervention would take.

Page 14



Education Select Committee
25 May 2016

The Portfolio Holder stressed that choice of school place and need for school
places were two very different entities and in order to give parents any choice
the Local Authority would need to deliver extra school places. This was a
function of the planning system and something that would need to be resolved
during the coming year.

The Committee noted that the provision of sufficient schools places was a
monumental problem for Bromley as a local authority. It was clear that
between 30 and 35 FE would be required by 2023 and it took time to build a
school. If action was not taken soon there would be a serious problem as the
Local Authority would be unable to fulfil its statutory duties and could be
facing Government intervention.

Children in Care

The Director of Education confirmed that the Education White Paper sought to
strengthen the roles of Corporate Parents and the Virtual Headteacher in
order to drive improvements in the educational achievement of children in
care.

Miscellaneous Issues

In terms of decisions surrounding whether the needs of schools could be
partially met by funding from the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) in the
way in which Section 106 monies were earmarked, the Portfolio Holder
confirmed that no decisions had been reached however, the Education
Department was making representations along the lines that the money
should be available for this purpose.

In relation to attendance, the Director of Education reported that the recent
High Court judgement in the Isle of White case regarding term time holidays
had not had any impact up until now on requests for such holidays in
Bromley’s maintained schools. The Portfolio Holder stressed that the view of
the Local Authority was that the best place for children was in school.

In relation to sold services to schools, the Director of Education highlighted
that the Local Authority sold very few services to schools: there was a small
free school meals checking service, elements of the education welfare service
is traded and data packs were sold to a number of schools.

Mrs Sam Parrett, Principal and CEO of Bromley College

Following the presentation to the Committee by Mrs Parrett, a question and
answer session was held with the following themes emerging:

Page 15



Education Select Committee
25 May 2016

New Free School Academies

Mrs Parrett confirmed that if the Bromley Futures Academy was successful in
navigating the Free School application process it would provide places for 50
pupils and would open in 2018.

The Committee noted that the Bromley Beacon Academy was expected to
take girls with social, emotional, and mental health needs, Mrs Parrett
confirmed that these pupils were currently schooled within the pupil referral
until system and would transfer out of their existing provision.

Providing Skills for the Future

In response to questions from the Committee, Mrs Parrett reported that labour
market information was used to identify the potential skills that employers
would require in the future and thus determine the curriculum. Bromley
College was continually reviewing its ability to deliver the necessary skills for
the continually evolving labour market. In this respect the College’s offer was
very much market led. Provision was constantly being reviewed and
developed to match the market for jobs and the future requirements of
employers.

The Committee was informed that 4,000 students attending the College were
adults over 25, therefore individuals who were upskilling or retraining.

Mrs Parrett explained to the Committee that over the next three years there
would be 300,000 new jobs in the construction industry. As a result of this
there was a need to ensure that skills were readily available locally and that
potential workers had a good understanding of emerging technologies in the
industry with these types of skills being provided by the pan-London
Construction Career College.

In relation to the proposed Academy at Biggin Hill for Aeronautical,
Engineering and Motor Vehicles, Mrs Parrett explained that the Local
Authority was now master planning the area. One residual problem was
whether the land would be transferred and at what price however, the College
was receiving excellent support from the Local Authority. One area of
uncertainty was whether the financial commitment from the Greater London
Authority would remain with the change of London Mayor.

SEN Provision

The Committee noted that Bromley College provided some excellent provision
for SEN students and queried whether this could be expanded in co-operation
with the Council in view of the Council’s duties in this area. In response, Mrs
Parrett confirmed that there were priority places for Bromley children however,
as the reputation of the College grew this was becoming increasingly difficult.
However, with the planned merger of Greenwich and Bexley Colleges with
Bromley College new opportunities may arise.

Page 16



Education Select Committee
25 May 2016

Mrs Jo Brinkley, Executive Headteacher and CEO of Spring Partnership Trust

Mrs Brinkley had provided a brief written report which was circulated to the
Committee outlining the work of the Spring Partnership Trust. Mrs Brinkley
explained that the Local Authority had a wealth of experience developed over
many years. This experience could reveal a number of opportunities for sold
services to schools as it was clear that as a result of the acadamisation
agenda there were now a number of emerging business leaders in schools
who would benefit from this expertise. Schools would not want to lose the
expertise of local authorities that had been developed over a long period.

It was unclear from the Education White Paper how services would be co-
ordinated in the future however, there was an opportunity to make the new
system work through the Regional Schools Commissioner, Multi Academy
Trusts (MATSs) and the Local Authority in Bromley acting as a champion of the
Government’s education strategies.

In response to a question, Mrs Brinkley indicated that it was not clear what the
‘optimum’ number of MATs across Bromley would be. The whole point of the
new system was to introduce diversity and competition. Mrs Brinkley
suggested that parents would want schools to each have an individual identity
with any Trust acting as the backbone linking all the schools within its
responsibility and providing the overarching culture and values. Mrs Brinkley
stressed the importance of schools reflecting their local community and being
unique to their local area.

The Chairman thanked the witnesses for the attendance at and input into the
Select Committees meeting. A report outlining the findings and
recommendations of the Committee would be produced in due course.

9 INFORMATION REPORTS

The Youth Offending Service — Improvement Plan Update

In response to a question regarding the role of the Operational Managers, the
Portfolio Holder confirmed that Operational Managers would be in place to
lead the Teams, in addition to this there would be a Head of Service. In terms
of recruiting a permanent Head of Service, the Portfolio Holder confirmed that
everyone involved was aware of the need for good leadership.

Proposed Adult Education Curriculum for 2016/17

In response to a question from the Chairman, the Head of Adult Education
reported that payment by instalments had been set up a few years ago when
fees for adult education increased. The offer of payment by instalment helped
to make more courses more widely available. Service users chose to pay by
a number of different methods and any missed payments were promptly
followed up.

Page 17



Education Select Committee
25 May 2016

The Head of Adult Education also confirmed that the leisure courses that were
on offer as part of the new curriculum were those that historically attracted a
high take up and received a subsidy and were therefore envisaged to break
even. In relation to the large printing and etching machine at the Widmore
Centre, this had been identified as surplus to requirements and would
therefore be open to closed bids.

The Portfolio Holder confirmed that the service would continue to be
monitored to ensure that it was fit for purpose.

In relation to courses at the Cotmandene Centre, the Head of Adult Education
confirmed that the intention was to add to the volunteer provision by putting
additional tutors in.

10 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS AMENDED BY THE LOCAL
GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) (VARIATION)
ORDER 2006, AND THE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT 2000

RESOLVED that the press and public be excluded during consideration
of the items of business listed below as it was likely in view of the nature
of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if
members of the press and public were present, there would be
disclosure to them of exempt information.

11 EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE EDUCATION PDS COMMITTEE
MEETING HELD ON 8 MARCH 2016

The exempt minutes of the meeting held on 8 March 2016 were agreed, and

signed as a correct record.

The Meeting ended at 10.15 pm

Chairman

10
Page 18



Report No.
CSD16129

Agenda Iltem 5

London Borough of Bromley

PART ONE - PUBLIC

Decision Maker:

Date:

Decision Type:

Title:

Contact Officer:

Chief Officer:

Ward:

EDUCATION SELECT COMMITTEE

15 September 2016

Non-Urgent Non-Executive Non-Key

RESPONSE TO THE FIRST REPORT OF THE EDUCATION
SELECT COMMITTEE 2016/17 - THE EDUCATION LANDSCAPE
IN BROMLEY

Philippa Gibbs, Democratic Services Officer
Tel: 020 8461 7638 E-mail: Philippa.Gibbs@bromley.gov.uk

Director of Corporate Services

(All Wards);

1. Reason for report

To report responses to the recommendations made by the Education Select Committee at its
first meeting held on 25 May 2016.

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)

That the Education Select Committee note the responses to the recommendations made
by the Committee that have been received to date.

1 Page 19



Corporate Policy

1. Policy Status: Not Applicable:
2. BBB Priority: Children and Young People Excellent Council

Financial
1. Cost of proposal: Not Applicable:
2. Ongoing costs: Not Applicable:

3. Budget head/performance centre: 2016/17 Budget — Democratic Services

4. Total current budget for this head: £335,590
5.  Source of funding: N/A

Staff
1. Number of staff (current and additional): 8 posts (7.27fte)

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours:

Legal
1. Legal Requirement: None:

2. Call-in: Not Applicable:

Customer Impact

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected): All users of Education
Services in the Borough

Ward Councillor Views

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? Not Applicable

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments: Not Applicable

2 Page 20



3. COMMENTARY

3.1 The Education Select Committee held its first meeting on 25 May 2016 and considered “The
Education Landscape in Bromley”.

3.2 The purpose of the inquiry was to examine what role the Council would have in education once
all maintained schools had become academies.

3.3 The report is attached at Appendix A.

3.4 The Education Portfolio Holder and Director have made the following responses to the
recommendations:

3.4.1 Recommendation 2.2: That the Council make representations to the Department for Education
to strengthen the ‘duty to co-operate’ of other parts of the education sector so as to enable the
Local Authority fulfil its statutory responsibilities.

Comment from The Portfolio Holder for Education and Director of Education: The
Education Department is working with partners to establish a Schools Partnership Board (SPB)
and this will be the forum to ensure that all schools and academies work in full cooperation in
the best interests of all Bromley’s children.

3.4.2 Recommendation 2.3: That the Council make representations to the Department for Education
that when an authority reaches a position whereby a substantial majority of schools are
academies that a ‘critical mass’ has been reached and that the remaining schools be required to
convert.

Comment from The Portfolio Holder for Education and Director of Education: This
proposal is signalled in the White Paper ‘Educational Excellence Everywhere’, published March
2016. We await the new Secretary of State’s views; in the meantime education officers are
working closely with the DfE and RSC colleagues on ensuring that all our schools’ academy
plans come to fruition.

3.4.3 Recommendation 2.4: That the Portfolio Holder for Education establishes the Government’s
intentions regarding admission criteria for church schools in order to consider resuming
discussions with the Catholic Archdiocese for Southwark with a view to the provision of a
secondary school.

Comment from The Portfolio Holder for Education and Director of Education: The Portfolio
Holder will seek a meeting with the relevant officials and report back to the Select Committee.
However, it must be recognised that all Basic Need funding has been allocated and the only
funding stream available to build a new secondary school is via the Free School route.

3.4.4 Recommendation 2.7: That the Portfolio Holder for Education considers how the role of the
Council as a corporate parent might be strengthened so as to improve the education outcomes
for Children Looked After.

Comment from The Portfolio Holder for Education and Director of Education: This
recommendation is intrinsic to the work of The Children’s Service Improvement Governance
Board; to be found within the Children’s Services Improvement Plan.

3.4.5 Recommendation 2.8 That the Education Department considers whether there is scope for
cooperation in the field of SEN provision with Bromley College of Further and Higher Education.

3 Page 21



Comment from The Portfolio Holder for Education and Director of Education: There is
currently a very close working relationship/partnership between Bromley SEND Services and
Bromley College. Examples of the partnership in action are as follows:

- the development of suitable courses for young people with complex needs, ensuring
young people with SEND who wish to continue their studies can remain in borough and
continue to ensure the preparation for adulthood developing independence and resilience
to live and work in the community;

- SEND Services and Preparing for Adulthood Team have and continue to provide training
and support to the college as the college has expanded to meet more diverse and
complex needs;

- The SEN Managers have also worked closely with the college led multi-academy trust to
support their contracting to deliver the provision for pupils with Social, Emotional and
Mental Health Needs in the borough.

Bromley Education Department will continue to seek opportunities for further partnership
work with Bromley College of Further Education across the whole of SEND and in
particular with preparing for adulthood.

3.4.6 Recommendation 2.9 That the Portfolio Holder and the Director of Education prepare a staffing
structure for consideration by the Education Select Committee at its September 2016 meeting.

Comment from The Portfolio Holder for Education and Director of Education: The
Director is reshaping the school improvement service in order to establish and service the
schools partnership board and also develop closer oversight of safeguarding in schools.

3.4.7 Recommendation 2.10 That the Portfolio Holder report back to the Education Select
Committee on which services currently sold by the Education Department would be
economically viable and sustainable once the future role and structure of the Department is
decided.

Comment from The Portfolio Holder for Education and Director of Education: It is agreed
that the Portfolio Holder will report back to the Select Committee once any review has been
undertaken. However, in light of recommendation 2.1 and the response in 2.10, we cannot
provide a comprehensive answer at this time.

3.4.8 Recommendation 2.11 That the Council explores what further co-operation could be
undertaken with the Bromley College of Further and Higher Education in helping people into
work and acquiring skills for employment.

Comment from The Portfolio Holder for Education and Director of Education: The
Department values its relationship with Bromley College and considers it an important partner.
The Department is also very keen to focus on ensuring post sixteen education and reducing
the gap between high and under-performing students. All of these strands of work, together
with helping people into employment, can be better achieved by increasing and maintain
cooperation between our organisations.

3.5 The Portfolio Holder for Renewal and Recreation has made the following responses to the
recommendations:

3.5.1 Recommendation 2.5: That the Council notes the urgent need to plan and provide for between
30 and 35 additional forms of entry for secondary education by 2021 and recommends that the

4 Page 22



Development Control Committee, through the Local Plan, ensures that there are sufficient sites
to ensure this can be achieved.

Comment from The Portfolio Holder for Renewal and Recreation: | believe the new local
plan as drafted includes sufficient sites for identified school needs.

The Development Control Committee will consider the First Report of the Education
Select Committee at its meeting on 6™ September 2016.

3.5.2 Recommendation 2.6: That the Development Control Committee be requested to consider how

funding from the Council’s Community Infrastructure Levy could be used for education
purposes.

Comment from The Portfolio Holder for Renewal and Recreation: there are rules about the
use of CIL. If the monies can be used for education then this will doubtless be considered
alongside other necessities.

The Development Control Committee will consider the First Report of the Education
Select Committee at its meeting on 6" September 2016.

3.5.3 Recommendation 2.12 That the Master Plan for Biggin Hill be expedited to enable an Academy

3.6

for Aeronautical, Engineering and Motor Vehicles to be established at the Airport by Bromley
College of Further and Higher Education.

Comment from The Portfolio Holder for Renewal and Recreation: We are progressing the
academy at Biggin Hill. There are many issues to be resolved including site ownership.

The Executive will consider the report at its meeting on 14 September 2016 and a verbal update
will be provided to Members at the meeting.

Non-Applicable Sections: | Financial Implications, Legal Implications, Personnel

Implications
Background Documents: Minutes of the Education Select Committee — 25 May 2016
(Access via Contact
Officer)

5 Page 23


http://cds.bromley.gov.uk/documents/g5692/Public%20minutes%20Wednesday%2025-May-2016%2019.00%20Education%20Select%20Committee.pdf?T=11

This page is left intentionally blank



FIRST REPORT OF THE EDUCATION SELECT COMMITTEE
2016/17

THE EDUCATION LANDSCAPE IN BROMLEY

Meeting Date: Wednesday 25 MAY 2016

Page 25



This page is left intentionally blank

Page 26



Education Select Committee 2016/17 — First Report -
The Future Education Landscape in Bromley

1. Introduction
The Education Select Committee met on May 25" 2016.
Present: ClIr Nicholas Bennett JP (Chairman), Cllr Neil Reddin (Vice Chairman)

Councillors Kathy Bance MBE, Kim Botting, Alan Collins, Judi Ellis, Chris Pearce
and Stephen Wells.

Mrs Mary Capon, Mrs Joan McConnell, Mrs Alison Regester, Tajana Reeves, Mrs
Myleen Williams.

Four witnesses gave evidence at the hearing;:
Clir Peter Fortune, Portfolio Holder for Education, London Borough of Bromley
Mrs Jane Bailey, Director of Education, London Borough of Bromley

Mrs Sam Parrett OBE, Chief Executive and Principal of Bromley College of Further
and Higher Education

Mrs Jo Brinkley, CEO and Executive Head teacher of the Spring Partnership Trust.

Written evidence was provided by Mrs Brinkley. The Director of Education and Mrs
Parrett gave PowerPoint presentations and provided written evidence.

The Committee gives its sincere thanks to the witnesses for their evidence.

Page 37



2. Executive Summary — Recommendations

2.1 That the Leader of the Council considers realigning Portfolio
Responsibilities to create a Children and Family Portfolio including Youth
Offending and Housing.

2.2 That the Council make representations to the Department for Education to
strengthen the ‘duty to co-operate’ of other parts of the education sector
So as to enable the Local Authority fulfil its statutory responsibilities.

2.3 That the Council make representations to the Department for Education
that when an authority reaches a position whereby a substantial majority
of schools are academies that a ‘critical mass’ has been reached and that
the remaining schools be required to convert.

2.4 That the Portfolio Holder for Education establishes the Government’s
intentions regarding admission criteria for church schools in order to
consider resuming discussions with the Catholic Archdiocese for
Southwark with a view to the provision of a secondary school.

2.5 That the Council notes the urgent need to plan and provide for between 30
and 35 additional forms of entry for secondary education by 2021 and
recommends that the Development Control Committee, through the Local
Plan, ensures that there are sufficient sites to ensure this can be achieved.

2.6 That the Development Control Committee be requested to consider how
funding from the Council’s Community Infrastructure Levy could be used
for education purposes.

2.7 That the Portfolio Holder for Education considers how the role of the
Council as a corporate parent might be strengthened so as to improve the
education outcomes for Children Looked After.

2.8 That the Education Department considers whether there is scope for co-
operation in the field of SEN provision with Bromley College of Further and
Higher Education.

2.9 That the Portfolio Holder and the Director of Education prepare a staffing
structure for consideration by the Education Select Committee at its
September 2016 meeting.

2.10 That the Portfolio Holder report back to the Education Select Committee
on which services currently sold by the Education Department would be
economically viable and sustainable once the future role and structure of
the Department is decided.

2.11 That the Council explores what further co-operation could be undertaken
with the Bromley College of Further and Higher Education in helping
people into work and acquiring skills for employment.

Page 28



2.12 That the Master Plan for Biggin Hill be expedited to enable an Academy
for Aeronautical, Engineering and Motor Vehicles to be established at the
Airport by Bromley College of Further and Higher Education.

Page 39



3. Background

3.1 The purpose of the inquiry was to examine what role the Council would have in
education once all maintained schools had become academies.

3.2 Bromley is on track to become the first authority in England to have no
maintained schools by 2017. The Government’s White Paper, “Educational
Excellence Everywhere” envisages a reduction in the education responsibilities of
local authorities.

3.3 Bromley Local Authority has already made the commitment that all of its schools
should become academies. It has been working closely with the Department for
Education (DfE) and its maintained schools to encourage them to apply for academy
status.

3.4 As at March 2016, 79% of Bromley’s schools are academies. DfE officials are in
regular contact with Bromley local authority to discuss the progress of schools
applying to become academies. This work includes defining the most appropriate
Multi Academy Trusts (MATS) for schools to join, and meeting small groups of
governing boards and head teachers to discuss governance and explain the process
of academy conversion.

3.5 The Education Select Committee had before them a report from the Council’s
Director of Education which highlighted the key priorities and policies of the various
teams within the Education Department. This report covered:

The Education White Paper and the Role of the Local Authority;
e Key Strategic Partners in Education;

e School Performance and Infrastructure;

e School Governance;

e School Place Planning;

e Special Educational Needs and Disability;

e Early Intervention and Family Support Services;

e The Education Department, Staffing and Structure.

4. Education White Paper

4.1 The Government published the Education White Paper ‘Educational Excellence
Everywhere’in March 2016. The paper reiterated the Government’s strategy to
develop a school-led educational system with the aim of every school being an
academy, working in multi-academy trusts overseen by Regional School
Commissioners and the Department for Education. An analysis of the implications for
local authorities when the proposals in the White Paper are translated into law is
attached at Appendix 1.

4.2 The Committee also received a review of statutory duties. This showed 178
current duties of which 66 would cease after the forthcoming Education Act. The
Review is attached as Appendix 2.

4.3 The White Paper indicates that, in future, local authorities will focus on three key
areas:

Page 80



» Ensuring every child has a school place, including that there are sufficient
schools, special schools and alternative provision places to meet demand;

» Ensuring the needs of vulnerable pupils are met, including: identifying,
assessing and making provision for children with special educational needs
(SEN); promoting school attendance and tackling absence; ensuring
alternative provision is available for excluded pupils or those who cannot
attend mainstream schools; safeguarding children and working with schools
to ensure they understand and discharge their safeguarding duties; and
supporting vulnerable children;

» Acting as champions for all parents and families including: listening to and
promoting the needs of parents, children and the local community; supporting
parents in navigating the admissions system; supporting parents to
understand and navigate local SEN arrangements; and championing high
standards locally for all pupils, working with the Regional Schools
Commissioner to tackle underperformance.

4.4 In answer to questions from the Select Committee, the Director of Education
reported that although the number of statutory duties of the Local Authority would
reduce, the Local Authority would retain responsibility for safeguarding amongst
other things. In relation to this duty all schools would continue to have a duty to co-
operate with the Local Authority. The Children’s Safeguarding Board would retain its
responsibilities and the Local Authority would be looking at how the system could be
strengthened. Recently a Primary Head teacher and a Secondary Head teacher had
joined the Board and it was considered that this would help to develop and enhance
relationships moving into the future.

4.5 The Committee considered the reduction in statutory duties and the end of
operational control of schools. It was noted that in many authorities’ children and
family services were part of the same department and political responsibility because
of the common and intertwined issues. In addition most housing provision centred
round support for families and young people leaving care. It was further noted that, in
Bromley, Care Services accounted for the majority of the budget and that a
realignment of responsibilities would not only provide a better ‘natural fit' but a more
balanced portfolio in terms of duties and financial oversight.

RECOMMENDATION 1

That the Leader of the Council considers realigning Portfolio Responsibilities
to create a Children and Family Portfolio including Youth Offending and
Housing.

5. Strategic Partners

The main strategic partners in delivering quality education to children and young
people in Bromley include:

Page 31



5.1 Schools and the Further Education College:

Officers continue to work closely with all schools and Bromley College of Further and
Higher Education to develop the infrastructure and the quality of education in the
Borough, with safeguarding underpinning everything we do. This requires close
working especially in the areas of governance, schools expansion and basic need,
admissions, school performance and attendance. The work being undertaken with
Bromley College and their Educational Trust is an important partnership in
developing improved provision for vulnerable children and improving work related
educational opportunities.

5.2 The Department for Education, the Education Funding Agency and the
Regional Schools Commissioner

It is acknowledged by all parties that the new education landscape requires strong
partnership working between the Council and national government and its agencies.
The Regional Schools Commissioner’s role in decisions around new academies and
school improvement is to be strengthened and all recognise that working closely in
partnership is the best way to ensure that the right decisions, influenced by the local
knowledge of the Council, are made for children and young people in Bromley.

5.3 Parents and Communities

The Council needs to build on its relationships with parents and communities to
ensure it can act as a champion for parents effectively. We need to continue to
encourage engagement of parents in local communities, having a voice in schools
planning and decision making in order to support children’s attainment and to help
them achieve their potential. In particular, we need to focus on supporting parents of
vulnerable children and children with SEN.

5.4 Other Partners

Partners in Social Care, Health and the Police will continue to play an important role
in the safeguarding of young people, their attainment and wellbeing.

6. Academies and school performance

6.1 In terms of developing close co-operation with both academies and the Regional
Schools Commissioner, the Director of Education emphasised the importance of
working in partnership and developing robust relationships in order to share
information. To this end, good communication will be key. In response to the
Chairman, who asked what powers a local authority would have if a partner failed to
co-operate with the authority in its statutory duties, the Director explained that it was
not anticipated that the resolution of any issues that may arise would be driven
through statute.

6.2 The Council’s role in overseeing the performance of all schools and academies
will continue to be valued by partners. An important addition to the team will be a
dedicated data analyst who can monitor the performance of academies as well as,
temporarily, any remaining maintained schools. Where an academy is seen not to be

Page 82



performing to expectations we will continue to provide challenge and work with DfE
colleagues to broker solutions.

RECOMMENDATION 2

That the Council make representations to the Department for Education to
strengthen the ‘duty to co-operate’ of other parts of the education sector so as
to enable the Local Authority fulfil its statutory responsibilities.

6.3 The Portfolio Holder emphasised that this was very much an evolving process
and that as a leader in the field of academy conversions the London Borough of
Bromley would need to be pro-active in feeding back to the Department for
Education any policy issues as they arise. The Chairman commented that although
the Government had backed away from compulsory academisation of all schools by
2021 in many authorities a ‘tipping point’ would be reached whereby it was
uneconomic and unsustainable to provide services to a small number of maintained
schools left with an authority. The Portfolio Holder agreed that a ‘critical mass’ would
be reached.

RECOMMENDATION 3

That the Council make representations to the Department for Education that
when an authority reaches a position whereby a substantial majority of
schools are academies that a ‘critical mass’ has been reached and that the
remaining schools be required to convert.

6.4 Mrs Parrett confirmed that if the Bromley Futures Academy was successful in
navigating the Free School application process it would provide places for 50 pupils
and would open in 2018.

6.4 The Committee noted that the Bromley Beacon Academy was expected to take
girls with social, emotional, and mental health needs. Mrs Parrett confirmed that
these pupils were currently schooled within the pupil referral until system and would
transfer out of their existing provision.

7. Provision of Catholic Secondary School

7.1 In response from a question from the Catholic Church representative on the
Select Committee highlighting that Bromley was the only London Borough without a
Catholic Secondary School, the Director of Education recognised the desire of the
Catholic Community to have a Catholic Secondary School in the Borough. Any new
school would now have to be approved through the new Free School process as it
was no longer in the gift of the Local Authority. The Chairman noted that it has been
indicated that the Government may change the current restriction on the number of
pupils which the Church could require to be practising adherents. This could mean
that the Catholic Bishops may review their position on new schools. It was noted that
in the successful appeal against planning permission for new homes at the former All
Saints School site a commitment was made by the Archdioceses that the proceeds
of the sale of the land would be used for Bromley pupils.

Page 93



RECOMMENDATION 4

That the Portfolio Holder for Education establishes the Government’s
intentions regarding admission criteria for church schools in order to consider
resuming discussions with the Catholic Archdiocese for Southwark with a
view to the provision of a secondary school.

8. Sufficiently of School Places

8.1 In September 2015 the Council consulted on proposed changes to the open
space designations affecting a number of schools. It sought to re designate school
sites from Green Belt and Metropolitan Open Land (MOL) to Urban Open Space.
Additionally a number of new sites were proposed as specific education allocations.
The Council will be consulting on its Local Plan Proposed Submission Draft this
summer.

8.2 In relation to ensuring that there was planning for a sufficient number of school
places, the Director of Education reported that Officers were working closely with the
Education Funding Agency (EFA). The Education White Paper had made it clear
that if Local Authorities failed to established enough school places the Government
would intervene however no information had been provided concerning what form
any intervention would take.

8.3 The Portfolio Holder stressed that choice of school place and need for school
places were two very different entities and in order to give parents any choice the
Local Authority would need to deliver extra school places. This was a function of the
planning system and something that would need to be resolved during the coming
year.

8.4 The Committee noted that the provision of sufficient schools places was a
monumental problem for Bromley as a local authority. It was clear that between 30
and 35 FE would be required by 2023 and it took time to build a school. If action
was not taken soon there would be a serious problem as the Local Authority would
be unable to fulfil its statutory duties and could be facing Government intervention.

RECOMMENDATION 5

That the Council notes the urgent need to plan and provide for between 30 and
35 additional forms of entry for secondary education by 2021 and recommends
that the Development Control Committee, through the Local Plan, ensures that
there are sufficient sites to ensure this can be achieved.

9. Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)

9.1 The Council is undertaking viability work into the potential for a Bromley CIL. The
Council will consider the findings and, assuming the decision is to progress a local
CIL, the Council will consult on a Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule (PDCS). This
will show the proposed CIL charges on different types of development, supported by
an Infrastructure Delivery Plan identifying the infrastructure required to support the

Page 19



delivery of the Local Plan to 2031. The range of infrastructure to be funded from the
CIL will also be identified, and will be published later as its draft Regulation 123 list of
infrastructure on which CIL can be legitimately spent. The Council will have to decide
if education is included on this list.

9.2 In terms of decisions surrounding whether the needs of schools could be partially
met through funding from the CIL in the way in which Section 106 monies have
previously been earmarked, the Portfolio Holder confirmed that no decisions had
been reached however, the Education Department was making representations
along the lines that the money should be available for this purpose.

RECOMMENDATION 6

That the Development Control Committee be requested to consider how
funding from the Council’s Community Infrastructure Levy could be used for
education purposes.

10.Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND)

10.1 The Special Educational Needs Service continues to deliver the reforms set out
in the Children and Families Act 2014. Following on from Bromley Pathfinder work a
four year transition plan is in place to transfer Statements of Special Educational
Needs into Education Health and Care Plans. A range of activities have ensured that
SEND processes are statutory compliant and the Bromley Local Offer has been
published. This provides information on universal, targeted and specialist activities
available for young people with SEN/D and their parents.

10.2 A SEND Strategy “Working Together to Improve Outcomes” 2015-2020 is in
place with 16 key priorities and a robust action plan maps and monitors progress of
the deliverable objectives in the strategy.

10.3 The Department for Education has commissioned Ofsted and the Quality Care
Commission (CQC) to inspect local areas on their effectiveness in fulfilling their new
duties in respect of the Children and Families Act 2014 and Bromley was chosen to
be part of a 5 day pilot Local Area Ofsted which took place in October 2015.

10.4 The Inspectors reviewed all the services involved in ensuring that children with
SEN/D were identified appropriately and holistically. This included Education, Care
and Health services. Whilst there was no formal published feedback from Ofsted on
the outcomes from the pilot inspection, the overall report back was very positive and
outlined the identification and meeting of needs in appropriate timeframes as a area
of strength. There was also very positive feedback from parents and young people
on their involvement in the process.

10.5 The Preparing for Adulthood Service was also highly commended for their work
progressing positive outcomes in preparing young people for their transition to
adulthood.

Other positive outcomes identified through the pilot inspection include:
v" Reduced tribunal appeals due to robust mediation by SEN staff;

v' Bromley as part of al0 borough consortium, reviewing quality and costs of
independent provisions and working towards joint commissioning;

Page 32



v Effective implementation of non- statutory support for SEN via Pupil
Resource Agreements

10.6 Bromley is a member of the ten borough joint commissioning project. The aim
of the project is to ensure that the commissioning of independent school placements
is done efficiently and effectively using the joint commissioning power of all the south
London Boroughs. Placements need to be of good quality and cost effective;
delivering very specific outcomes for those Bromley young people with very complex
and enduring special educational needs. The project has been successful in
attracting grant funds to deliver these outcomes at minimum cost to the local
authorities. This will result in savings over time.

10.7 Priority work streams for the future include:

Developing the future model for delivering SEN services 0-25

Realigning current services and resources to deliver high quality cost effective
statutory services across the full age range;

Implementing specialist place planning to ensure quality provision in borough;
Working with the ten borough consortium to ensure that when there is no
provision in-borough to meet highly complex needs that it is commissioned at
a fair price.

YV VYV

Future provision requirements:

» Reducing out of borough provision;

» Re-shaping specialist provision to meet projected future demands;

» Reuvisiting the model for sensory provision which continues to be directly line
managed by the Local Authority.

10.8 At the meeting, the Director for Education highlighted that Bromley was a
Pathfinder Local Authority in this area. As a result of this status a great deal of work
has already taken place with parents being fully involved. There now has to be an
emphasis that Education, Care and Health Plans were for those with complex needs
who fell within the criteria that the title suggested and this would require a shift in
culture. There was a strong SENCO Forum within the Borough and this was very
helpful in enabling learning and the sharing of policy and strategy. The priority for
the Local Authority has to be early intervention, working with SENCOs to ensure that
they are able to identify young people that require additional help and support.

10.9 The Director of Education reported that within the Borough there are
approximately 8,000 children with an identified need and of these approximately
1,600 had a statement or health plan. There are 48 children in specialist out-of-
borough provision. There is a clear focus on keeping as many as possible in
borough and this would require ensuring that there was a fit-for-purpose offer for
some of the more complex young people residing within the Borough.

10.10 In relation to SEN Transport, the Director of Education reported that Officers
were continually looking at ways to manage the SEN Transport budget efficiently.
The Portfolio Holder highlighted the importance of ensuring that as many children
with EHC plans/statements are educated within the Borough, thus keeping children
near their homes and transport costs at a minimum.

Page 18



10.11 The Director of Education confirmed that the Education White Paper sought to
strengthen the roles of Corporate Parents and the Virtual Head teacher in order to
drive improvements in the educational achievement of children in care.

RECOMMENDATION 7

That the Portfolio Holder for Education considers how the role of the Council
as a corporate parent might be strengthened so as to improve the education
outcomes for Children Looked After.

10.12 The Committee noted that Bromley College provided some excellent provision
for SEN students and queried whether this could be expanded in co-operation with
the Council in view of the Council’s duties in this area. In response, Mrs Parrett
confirmed that there are priority places for Bromley children however, as the
reputation of the College grew this was becoming increasingly difficult. However.
With the proposed merger of both Greenwich College and Bexley College with
Bromley College new opportunities may arise.

RECOMMENDATION 8

That the Education Department considers whether there is scope for co-
operation in the field of SEN provision with Bromley College of Further and
Higher Education.

11. Education Department Staffing and Structure

11.1 The Director for Education now reports directly to the Chief Executive and has a
team of five Heads of Service, overseeing the work of the Education Department in
the following areas:

e School Place Planning and Admissions

e Special Educational Needs and Disability;
e School Standards and Early Years;

e Access and Inclusion (vacant);

e Adult Education.

11.2 The Director reported that this is a much reduced central team compared to
previous years to reflect the Council’s diminished role in the oversight of academies.
However, she said, it is clear that we need to have more robust processes in place
to support the management of school exclusions as well as the strategic oversight of
co-ordinated in-year admissions and will be seeking to fill the vacant post of Access
& Inclusion.

RECOMMENDATION 9
That the Portfolio Holder and the Director of Education prepare a staffing

structure for consideration by the Education Select Committee at its
September 2016 meeting.

Page 33



12.Term time Holidays

12.1 In relation to attendance, the Director of Education reported that the recent High
Court judgement in the Isle of White case regarding term time holidays had not yet
had any impact on requests for such holidays in Bromley’s maintained schools. The
Portfolio Holder stressed that the view of the Local Authority was that the best place
for children was in school.

13.Sold Services

13.1 In relation to sold services to schools, the Director of Education highlighted that
the Local Authority sold very few services to schools. There is a small free school
meals checking service, elements of the education welfare service is traded and data
packs are sold to a number of schools.

13.2 Mrs Brinkley explained that the Local Authority had a wealth of experience
developed over many years. This experience could reveal a number of opportunities
for sold services to schools as it is clear that, as a result of the academisation
agenda, there are now a number of emerging business leaders in schools who could
benefit from this expertise with schools not wanting to lose the expertise of local
authorities which has been developed over a long period.

RECOMMENDATION 10

That the Portfolio Holder report back to the Education Select Committee on
which services currently sold by the Education Department would be
economically viable and sustainable once the future role and structure of the
Department is decided.

14.Providing Skills for the Future

14.1 Mrs Parrett provided a comprehensive written report on the range of services
which the newly enlarged Bromley College of Further and Higher Education would
provide as one of the constituent parts of the proposed new South East London
Group of Colleges which would shortly include Greenwich Community College and
Bexley College of FE.

14.2 The College is providing the following to students under the age of 19

v' Substantial vocational FE provision for 16-19 year old learners up to
Level 3;

v" A new Career College for Hospitality, Food and Enterprise based at the
Orpington Campus — one of only three in England,;

v" The ‘Nido Volans Centre’ for students with complex learning
disabilities;

v Apprenticeship provision through a South London Apprenticeship
Company;

v" Through the sponsored Bromley Educational Trust (BET) a Multi
Academy Trust provision at Midfield Campus (Primary) and Hayes

Page 38



Campus (Secondary) of the former LA services for pupils at risk of
being or who have been permanently excluded;

v Also under the BET is the Bromley Beacon Academy, a special
secondary school for 40 boys. This would be expanded in September
2016 to include provision for Key Stage 5 for boys and Key Stage 2-5
for girls;

v" Plans are in place for an 11-18 Technical Academy/UTC in Health and
Wellbeing Sciences at Westmoreland Road.

14.3 For older students Higher Education courses are offered in partnership with
Canterbury Christ Church College.

14.4 In response to questions from the Committee, Mrs Parrett reported that labour
market information was used to identify the potential skills that employers would
require in the future and thus determine the College’s curriculum. Bromley College
was continually reviewing its ability to deliver the necessary skills for the evolving
labour market. In this respect the College’s offer was very much market led.
Provision was constantly being reviewed and developed to match the market for jobs
and the future requirements of employers.

14.5 The Committee was informed that 4,000 students attending the College are
adults over 25, and are therefore likely to be individuals who are ‘up-skilling’ or
retraining.

14.6 Mrs Parrett explained to the Committee that over the next three years there
would be 300,000 new jobs in the construction industry. As a result of this there was
a need to ensure that skills were readily available locally and that potential workers
had a good understanding of emerging technologies in the industry with these types
of skills being provided by the pan-London Construction Career College.

RECOMMENDATION 11

That the Council explores what further co-operation could be undertaken with
the Bromley College of Further and Higher Education in helping people into
work and acquiring skills for employment.

14.7 In relation to the proposed Academy at Biggin Hill for Aeronautical, Engineering
and Motor Vehicles, Mrs Parrett explained that the Local Authority was now master
planning the area. One residual problem was whether the land would be transferred
and at what price however, the College was receiving excellent support from the
Local Authority. One area of uncertainty was whether the financial commitment that
had been made by the Greater London Authority would remain with the change of
London Mayor.

RECOMMENDATION 12
That the Master Plan for Biggin Hill be expedited to enable an Academy for

Aeronautical, Engineering and Motor Vehicles to be established at the Airport
by Bromley College of Further and Higher Education.

Page 39



This page is left intentionally blank

Page 40



1¥ abed

White Paper: Educational Excellence Everywhere (March 2016)

Implications for Bromley

The White Paper states:

Bromley local authority has already made the commitment that all of its schools should
become academies. It has been working closely with the DfE and its maintained schools
to encourage them to apply for academy status.

As at March 2016, 79% of Bromley’s schools are academies. DfE officials are in regular
contact with Bromley local authority to discuss the progress of schools applying to
become academies. This work includes defining the most appropriate MATSs for schools
to join, and meeting small groups of governing boards and head teachers to discuss
governance and explain the process of academy conversion.

No Bromley maintained school is currently in an Ofsted category of concern. DfE officials
continue to work closely with Bromley to support any vulnerable schools to join strong
MATS, helping to drive up standards for children across the Bromley area. (p 69)

White paper reference

Anticipated impact

Local authorities should act as advocates for their
electorate, challenging school providers to deliver high
educational standards and better outcomes for children;
the local authority’s education duties will focus on three
areas:

e Governance: there is no expectation that the LA retains
a relationship with governing boards and MATs. The DfE
will no longer require academies to reserve places for
parents on governing boards; appointments will be made
according to skills. It is therefore recommended that the
governor services function ceases to operate from April
2017 when it is anticipated that all Bromley schools will
have converted.

e School improvement: the LA will no longer carry out this




8§ abed

function as there will be a shift to a school led system.
Remaining duties are oversight of testing arrangements
(this could be commissioned from another organisation)
and possibly SACRE (tbc). The schools standard team
will become redundant and we are planning to effect this
by December 2016.

There is reference to the role of lead member and
director of children’s services changing; members will
need to consider the current arrangement of separating
care services from education.

a. Ensuring every child has a school place

including that there are sufficient school, special school
and alternative provision places to meet demand. Local
authorities will retain responsibility for this in a fully
academised system. The government will support them by
continuing to provide substantial funding to allow

them to deliver sufficient places, as well as by creating
places through the free schools programme. As in the
past, we expect that they will use their strong relationships
with local schools to deliver the places needed in a local
area, including planning ahead where necessary to
support applications through the central free schools
programme or to seek proposals for presumption free
schools. Where local authorities are failing in this duty, the
government will not hesitate to intervene. Local authorities
will also work with schools and parents in developing local
school transport policies, giving schools the opportunity to
provide school transport services where that makes sense
locally; and take a lead in crisis management and

The paper indicates that planning restrictions
surrounding school building and expansion will be
relaxed; currently a consultation is underway on
increasing the square meterage that a school can build
on without permission from 100 to 250 sgq mtrs.

When a maintained school converts the land will
automatically go to The Secretary of State who will issue
the lease, rather than the current arrangement where The
Council gives 125 year lease and retains ownership of the
land.

It is possible that the current limitation of a maximum of
50% faith places for faith schools will be relaxed. This is
of particular interest to Bromley as it would allow for a
Catholic secondary academy to open using the free
school route.

Central crisis management and emergency planning
services need to be retained and communication routes
and possibly support for individual schools strengthened.




6% abed

emergency planning

Early years duties remain and there is expansion linked to
the new 30 hours free education programme to be
implemented from September 2017 : it is planned that the
Early Years Funding Team move to Liberata. In addition
there is a small team that leads on early years quality
(raising standards across the nearly 800 providers but
focusing on those less than good and not yet inspected)
and this function could be commissioned from another
organisation. The sufficiency duty could be aligned with
the work of the school place planning and admissions
service.

b. Ensuring the needs of vulnerable pupils are met
including identifying, assessing and making provision for
children with special educational needs and disability and
looked after children; promoting school attendance and
tackling persistent absence; ensuring that alternative
provision is available for head teachers to commission for
children and young people excluded from school

or otherwise unable to attend a mainstream school,
leading on safeguarding responsibilities for all children,
including those in unregulated settings, educated at home
and children missing education, as well as children at risk
of radicalisation; working with schools to ensure that they
understand and discharge their safeguarding duties; and
supporting vulnerable children, for example, acting as the
‘corporate parent’ for looked after children, using the
statutory Virtual School Head role to work with

schools and other agencies on promoting their educational
achievement and progress, and deciding how to spend the

This is a significant retained area of responsibility with the
local authority seen as the champion for ensuring all
vulnerable children’s educational and well-being
outcomes are met.

AP academies: the significant change is that mainstream
schools will commission places from alternative providers
rather than the current situation where the LA is
commissioner (high needs block). The LA will still be
responsible for ensuring that we have a sufficiency of AP
places.

Virtual head teacher role: much emphasis is put on the
importance of this position in ensuring that pupil premium
plus expenditure is outcomes driven. It is also likely that
the educational needs of adopted children will become
the responsibility of the virtual head teacher through a
legislative change.

Education welfare officers: it appears that there is no
anticipated change to current statutory function sitting




0% abed

Pupil Premium Plus

with the LA. A decision will need to be made as to
whether Bromley wants to continue to offer a traded
element to the service. Currently this is deemed
successful in that schools that buy in the service have
fewer court cases but this element is subsidised by
Bromley.

Safeguarding: this major responsibility continues to sit
with the LA but, within a changing external landscape,
how this duty is undertaken will require a review and
possibly an increase in resources. Currently early years
safeguarding training is managed by the early years team
and a slicker approach might be to bring it together under
the LADO.

SEN: Changes to high needs funding will demand radical
changes to how we manage this funding stream. We are
already reviewing the function and purpose of The
Phoenix Centre and also need to realign provision of deaf
services where The Council is currently a direct provider
of deaf teaching through The Griffins Centre and Darrick
Wood School.

c. Acting as champions for all parents and families
including listening to and promoting the needs of parents,
children and the local community — working alongside
elected mayors; supporting parents in navigating the
system through a continuing role in admissions; supporting
children, young people and parents to navigate local
SEND arrangements (such as providing information,
advice and support) and engaging them in designing and
co-producing local SEND policies, service commissioning

This gives a clear remit for a lead member while also
implying that The Council works in partnership with the
RSC and local MATSs, retaining shared strategic oversight
of school provision in Bromley. This duty also
encompasses the provision of practical current
information and service-user engagement. This places
the LA as an advocate and influencer rather than having
direct change control, which will require sensitive
manoeuvring to be effectively delivered. The current




§g abed

and delivery; and championing high standards locally for
all pupils, for example, by encouraging high performing
providers to establish new school places and where
necessary calling for action from the Regional Schools
Commissioner to tackle underperformance

Information, advice and support service, that sits with
Rachel Dunley and operates out of the children’s centres,
already provides direct support to parents and families
and it is anticipated that any increase in direct family work
would be through this team.




This page is left intentionally blank

Page 46



gg abed

Review of Statutory Duties

Theme

Legislation

Title of duty

Function - What is it intended to achieved?

Service Area

Ongoing Duty Post
Academisation

Comment

Children and Young
People

Children and Young Persons Act 1963 Section 37.
Secondary - The Children (Performances)
Regulations 1968.

Duty on local authority to consider licence applications for
children to take part in performance or take part in paid
sports or paid modelling work.

Local authorities have a duty to safeguard children who take
part in performances by ensuring adequate protections are in
place, for example, regulating the hours of performance and
breaks, the provision of a chaperone to protect the child's
welfare and the provision of education when children are
missing school. This legislation is currently being reviewed to
see how it can be updated, streamlined and made more
proportionate to risk.

Education Welfare

YES

Education Education Act (EA) 1996 Section 13A. Section 13A |No formal title and in practice is linked to Section 13 (general |For local authorities to be responsible for securing that Strategic Place Planning YES
was inserted by Section 1 of Education and responsibility for education) and 14 (securing sufficient sufficient education is available to meet the needs of the
Inspections Act (EIA) 2006 - duty to promote high  |schools) duties. population in their area.
standards and the fulfilment of potential. Amended
by Para 3, Schedule 2 of Apprenticeship, Skills,
Children and Learning Act (ASCL) 2009.
Education Education Act (EA) 1996 Section 14 . General duty |Referred to as place planning duty but is in fact general duty to |For local authorities to be responsible for securing sufficient |Strategic Place Planning YES
on local authorities to secure sufficient schools in  |secure sufficient schools in their area. Local authorities to primary and secondary schools in their area. The survey
their area. Section 14 (3A) added by Section 2 of secure sufficient primary and secondary schools. To complete |provides the Department for Education and Partnership for
Education and Inspections Act (EIA) 2006 — to the annual Surplus Places Survey (renamed for 2010 as the |Schools with data on the number of surplus school places, and
secure diversity of provision of schools and School Capacity Collection). This data has been gathered in  |the areas of projected shortfall, across England, and the
increasing opportunities for parental choice. some form since 1994. actions local authorities are taking to address this.
Secondary legislation - The Information as to
Provision of Education (England) Regulations 2008
Education Education Act (EA) 1996 Section 14A, added by Local authorities to consider and respond appropriately to For local authorities reasonably to consider parental Strategic Place Planning YES
Section 3 of Education and Inspections Act (EIA) parental representations about school provision in relation to |representations regarding the provision of schools. To respond
2006. local authorities’ functions under Section 14 of the Education |accordingly, including outlining any proposed action, or where
Act 1996. it is considered action is not needed, to explain the reasons for
this.
Education Education Act 1996 Section 457 Charges and remissions policies required by all governing To provide clarity about what can and cannot be charged for. |Finance NO
bodies.
Education Education Act 1996 Section 458 Charges for board and lodging at boarding schools. Intended to insure that maintained boarding schools are Finance NO
funded for the cost of board and lodging by parental fees but
the local authority must ensure the level does not exceed cost
of provision; and that where such education is necessary (as
opposed to desirable) for a pupil the parents do not bear the
cost of it but rather the pupil's home local authority does, by
remitting the fees or paying to the maintaining local authority.
Education Education Act 1996 Section 409 & Part 10, Chapter |Complaints about the curriculum in maintained schools. S409 requires local authorities to consider complaints about NO
2 of the Apprenticeships, Skills, Children & Learning the curriculum, religious education and collective worship
Act (ASCL) 2009, amended by Education Act 2011 referred to them after the complaint has been considered by
section 45. school governing bodies. This duty was removed in some
areas following the partial commencement of the complaints
provision in ASCLA 2009. This duty is therefore currently in
force in all local authorities except the 14 areas where the
Local Government Ombudsman complaints service operates.
In those areas such complaints can currently be considered by
the LGO. The duty on the remaining English local authorities
to investigate complaints will be removed when Section 45 of
the Education Act 2011, which restricts Section 409 of the
EA96 to Wales, is commenced. This is expected to happen in
August 2012.
Education Education Act 1996 Section 19 (3A) and (3B). Statutory duty for the local authority to provide full time This ensures that children who cannot (for whatever reason) |Behaviour Support YES This statutory duty seems questionable in light of the
Secondary: Education (Provision of Full-Time education from the sixth day of exclusion for permanently be in mainstream education, continue to receive full time Education White Paper proposal that Alternative Provision
Education for Excluded Pupils) England Regs excluded pupils and for pupils who are excluded from a pupil |education unless it is not in the child's best interests. These funding from the High Needs Block (from which provision
2007(S1 2007/1870). Education Act 1996 Sections |referral unit for a fixed period of more than 5 days. To make |measures were introduced to make exclusions a more for permanently excluded pupil/pupils with health needs are
3A and 19 and schedule 1, amended by section 3 of | arrangements for the provision of suitable education at school |effective sanction and to reduce the disruption to a child's funded) transfers to schools.
the Children Schools and Families Act 2010. or otherwise for each child of compulsory school age who, for |education caused by exclusion.
Secondary - enactment regulations apply other reasons of illness, exclusion or otherwise, would not receive it
areas of education law to Pupil Referral Unit (PRU). |unless such arrangements were made. Local authorities may
establish pupil referral units to discharge their duty but do not
have a duty to do so.
Education Secondary - The School Finance (England) Determination of schools' budget shares in the case of This is intended to ensure that funding follows the pupil in the |Finance YES This statutory duty seems questionable in light of the

Regulations 2012

excluded pupils and determination of the amount to be paid by
one local authority to another when a pupil permanently
excluded from a school maintained by one local authority is, in
the same financial year, admitted by a school maintained by
another authority. Redetermination of a school's budget share
where a permanently excluded pupil is subsequently
reinstated in a maintained school.

case of an exclusion - it is transferred to the admitting school
or the local authority's central schools budget (if the pupil is
not admitted within a set timescale to another school) to
ensure that there is at least some funding available to
contribute to the costs incurred by the new provider. The
Regulations also deal with excluded pupils who are
subsequently educated in another local authority. This is
intended to ensure that where an excluded pupil is reinstated
in the school from where they had been permanently excluded,
an appropriate level of funding is reallocated to the school.

Education White Paper proposal that Alternative Provision
funding from the High Needs Block (from which provision
for permanently excluded pupil/pupils with health needs are
funded) transfers to schoo

Page 1 of 15




8% obed

Review of Statutory Duties

Theme Legislation Title of duty Function - What is it intended to achieved? Service Area Ongoing Duty Post Comment
Academisation
Education Education Act 1996, schedule 1, amended by Duties in relation to pupil referral units : Determine and review The intention of requiring a local authority to establish NO
Education Act 2011 section 45. Secondary - a curriculum policy; that the curriculum should be balanced management committees for every pupil referral unit was to
Education (Pupil Referral Units) (Management and broadly based; make information available to parents in  improve their management of PRUSs, by giving them similar
Committees etc.) England Regulations 2007. relation to the unit; establish management committees and responsibilities to governing bodies of mainstream schools.
Education (Pupil Exclusions and Appeals) (Pupil appoint first members for all PRUs. Local authorities must
Referral Units) England Regulations 2008. delegate some of their functions in relation to pupil referral
units to the management committee but must not delegate
functions in relation to staffing and finance of the unit, health
and safety issues, control of premises and a reserve power in
relation to prevention of a breakdown of discipline.

Education Education Act 1996 Section 447 Duty for local authorities to consider an Education Supervision |An Education Supervision Order can help where parents find it |Education Welfare YES
Order instead or alongside a prosecution under section 36 of |difficult to exercise a proper influence over their child, and
the Children Act 1989 before prosecuting a parent under where the child has developed a pattern of irregular
section 444 of the Education Act 1996. attendance. It gives the backing of the court to the supervising

officer and can help bring home to parents the need to fulfil
their responsibilities for their child's education.

Education Education Act 1996 Section 436A. Duty on all local authorities to make arrangements to enable |The identification of children missing education. Education Welfare YES
them to establish ( so far as it is possible to do) the identities
of children residing in their area who are not receiving suitable
education by attendance at school or otherwise

Education Education Act 1996 Section 437. If it appears to the local authority that a child of compulsory Ensure that all children get a suitable education Education Welfare YES
school age is not receiving a suitable education, either by
regular attendance at school or otherwise, they must begin
procedures for issuing a School Attendance Order.

Estates Education Act 1996 Section 543. Secondary - The |Sets minimum standards for school premises. Sets minimum standards for school premises. Strategic Place Planning NO

Education (School Premises) Regulations 1999 and
the Education (School Premises) (England)
Regulations 2012.
Special Education Education Act 1996 Part IV, Chapter 1 (sections Children with Special Educational Needs Identifying and assessing Special Educational Needs, making |Special Educational Needs YES
Needs 312-332B) and Schedules 26 and 27 . Secondary - and reviewing Special Educational Needs statements and a
The Education (Special Educational Needs) transition plan from age 14. Keeping arrangements for Special
(England) (Consolidation) Regulations 2001 (Sl Educational Needs provision under review. Making
2001/3455). arrangements for an advice and information service and a
dispute resolution service for parents of children with Special
Educational Needs. More recent legislation has made minor
amendments to the Education Act 1996. (Subject to proposals
in the SEN Green Paper.)
Special Education Education Act 1996 Section 14 . Functions in respect of provision in primary and secondary In carrying out their duty to provide sufficient schools for the |Strategic Place Planning YES
Needs schools. area local authorities must have particular regard for the need
to secure Special Educational Needs provision for pupils with
Special Educational Needs. (Subject to proposals in the SEN
Green Paper)
School Meals Education Act 1996 Section 512(3) as amended by |To provide school lunches (upon request) to those eligible for [Ensures that local authorities where the school meal budget NO
Education Act 2002. free lunches and to those pupils for whom it would not be has not been delegated to schools, supply school lunches
unreasonable to provide lunches. where appropriate.
School Transport Education Act 1996 Section 508B. Inserted by Requirement for the Local Authority to make provision for Re-affirms eligibility criteria and extends eligibility to free home |Admissions YES
section 77 of the Education and Inspections Act suitable home to school travel arrangements for eligible to school transport for low income families (see below).
2006. children of compulsory school age (5-16) to facilitate Schedule 35B sets out the meaning.
attendance at a relevant educational establishment. Travel
arrangements are provided free of charge.
School Transport Education Act 1996 Section 508A . Secondary - Duty on Local Authorities to Promote Sustainable Modes of The promotion of sustainable modes of travel (walking, ? Establish who currently does | YES LA duties on transport seem unclear and questionable as to
Statutory Instrument 2008 No 3093 The School Travel to assess general school travel needs. The Local cycling, bus use etc) that may improve the well being of those |this. what the expected role of the LA is in academy landscape
Information (England) Regulations 2008. Authority must publish each academic year a document who use them and the environment. This is closely linked with (where schools are their own admissions authorities).
containing their strategy to promote the use of sustainable local transport planning work required b the Department of
modes of travel to meet the school travel needs of their area | Transport.
and must also publish a summary.
School Transport Education Act 1996 Section 509AD as inserted by |Duty to have regard to religion and belief in exercise of travel |Re-affirms that local authorities are required to have regard to |? Establish who currently does YES LA duties on transport seem unclear and questionable as to
section 84 of the Education and Inspections Act functions. any wish of a parents to have their children provided with this. what the expected role of the LA is in academy landscape
2006. education at an establishment on the grounds of the parent’s (where schools are their own admissions authorities).
religion or belief, in exercising any of their travel functions. A
root and branch review of home to school transport is under
consideration.

School Transport Education Act 1996 Section 509AB. Further provision about transport policy statements. Requires |Requires local authorities to specify to what extent the ? Establish who currently does | YES LA duties on transport seem unclear and questionable as to
local authorities to specify to what extent the arrangements arrangements they include in their annual transport policy this. what the expected role of the LA is in academy landscape
they include in their annual transport policy statement facilitate |statement facilitate the attendance of disabled persons and (where schools are their own admissions authorities).
the attendance of disabled persons and persons with learning |persons with learning difficulties. Intended to ensure that local
difficulties. authorities enable these learners to attend educational

establishments.
School Transport Education Act 1996 Section 509AA. Amended with |Duty on local authorities to publish annual Post 16 Transport | Secures access to learning for young people post 16 - ? Establish who currently does | YES LA duties on transport seem unclear and questionable as to

additional criteria for local authority post 16
transport policy statements in Education & Skills Act
2002, Education and Inspections Act 2006,
Education and Skills Act 2008 and Apprenticeships,
Skills, Children and Learning Act 2009

Policy Statement. Statement must set out the arrangements
for the provision of transport, and for financial assistance
towards transports costs, it considers necessary to facilitate
attendance of students of 6th form age.

transport having been identified as a significant barrier to
young people in accessing post 16 learning and training - and
ensures transparency regarding local arrangements and
complaints processes for these learners

this.

what the expected role of the LA is in academy landscape
(where schools are their own admissions authorities).

Page 2 of 15




6% abed

Review of Statutory Duties

Theme

Legislation

Title of duty

Function - What is it intended to achieved?

Service Area

Ongoing Duty Post
Academisation

Comment

School Transport

Section 509AB Education Act 1996 as amended by
the sections 54-57 of the Apprenticeships, Skills,
Children and Learning Act 2009.

New additional requirements for Post 16 Transport Policy
Statements for 2011/12 academic year and thereafter
including: linking consideration of transport arrangements to
commissioning duty (15ZA(1)); re-enacting Adult Transport
Duty (section 509 of Education Act 1996); adding young
people of sixth form age and their parents to the list of named
stakeholders local authorities have to consult in drawing up
their statements; and power for Local authorities to amend and
republish their statement in year in response to complaints or
direction from the Secretary of State.

? Establish who currently does
this.

YES

LA duties on transport seem unclear and questionable as to
what the expected role of the LA is in academy landscape
(where schools are their own admissions authorities).

Education Education Act 1996 Section 507B- introduced The duty to secure access to positive activities. To ensure so far as reasonably practicable young people have |Youth Services YES Questionable in light of reductions to LA grants; also
through section 6 of the Education and Inspections access to sufficient educational leisure-time activities which ‘reasonably practicable' and 'sufficient' are open to
Act 2006. are for the improvement of their well-being and personal and interpretation.
social development, and sufficient facilities for such activities;
that activities are publicised; and that young people are placed
at the heart of decision making regarding the positive activity
provision.
Class sizes School Standards and Framework Act 1998 Duty placed upon local authorities and other relevant bodies to Limit Infant classes to 30 + permitted exceptions and data (via |Strategic Place Planning NO
Sections 1 and 138(7). Secondary legislation - restrict class sizes for pupils aged 4-7 to thirty pupils per class. annual schools census) on compliance. New exceptions
Infant Class Size Regulations 2012 permitted by the 2012 regulations are children of service
personnel and children of multiple births (including twins).
School Admissions  |School Standards and Framework Act (SSFA) 1998 |To comply with the legislative Code on Admissions in exercise |School Admissions Code and School Admissions Appeal Admissions YES
Section 84 as amended by section 40 EIA 2006 - |and discharge of local authority functions in relation to Code 2012 came into force on 1 February 2012.
the School Admissions Code and School admissions under the School Standards and Framework Act
Admissions Appeal Code - duty on governing (SSFA) 1998. The SSFA and relevant regulations confers a
bodies to act in accordance with the Codes. number of duties which require the LA to carry out different
Secondary legislation - The School Admissions functions at different times of the admissions cycle.
(Adjudicator Determinations Relating to Looked
After Children and Certain Other Children)
(England) Regulations 2007, School Admissions
(Admission Arrangements) (England) 2008, School
Admissions (Admissions Arrangements and Co-
ordination of Admission Arrangements) (England)
2012, School Admissions Appeals Arrangements
(England) 2012, School Admissions Code
(Appointed Day) (England) Order 2010, School
Admissions Code and School Admissions Appeals
Code (Appointed Day) Order 2012, School
Admissions (Co-ordination of Admissions
Arrangements) (England) Regulations 2008, School
Admissions (Infant Class Sizes) (England)
Regulations 2012.
School Admissions School Standards and Framework Act 1998 Section |To provide advice and assistance to parents when deciding on |Support parents when deciding on a school place and allow Admissions YES
86(1A) as amended by section 42 of the Education |a school place and allow parents to express a preference. them to express a preference for at school.
and Inspections Act 2006.
School Admissions  |School Standards and Framework Act 1998 Section |Reports by local authority to adjudicator about matters relevant|To provide a national picture of admissions issues. Admissions YES
88P amended by Education Act 2011 section 34. to schools admission as may be required by the School
Admissions Code.
School Admissions  |School Standards and Framework Act 1998 Section For each school year, the local authority must publish the To provide local parents with a collated set of admission Admissions NO
92. Substituted by Education Act 2002. prescribed information about the admission arrangements for |arrangements for schools in their area.
each of the maintained schools in their area, and if regulations
so provide, such maintained schools outside their area.
School Admissions  |School Standards and Framework Act 1998. School A local authority shall make arrangements for enabling the To impose a duty on governing bodies for schools that are Admissions NO

Admission Appeals Code Section 94.

parent of a child to appeal against admissions decisions.

their own admission authorities and local authorities to act in
accordance with any relevant provisions of the Appeals Code.

Page 3 of 15




Review of Statutory Duties

Theme Legislation Title of duty Function - What is it intended to achieved? Service Area Ongoing Duty Post Comment
Academisation

School Budget School Standards and Framework Act 1998 Local authorities must determine their school and pupil referral | The scheme includes provisions for approval of deficits, Finance

Sections 45A, 45AA, 46, 47, 47ZA, 47A and 48 and |unit budgets and budget shares in accordance with the school |management of delegated budgets and banking

Schedule 14, as amended by Education Act 2011 |finance regulations. They must establish a schools forum for |arrangements. The finance regulations set out the services for

sections 46 and 50. Secondary - School Finance |[their area in accordance with the schools forums regulations |which funding can be retained centrally within the schools

(England) Regulations 2011, School Finance and maintain a scheme for financing their maintained schools |budget, the factors which are allowed in a local funding

(England) Regulations 2012. in accordance with the school finance regulations. formula, the arrangements for protection of school budgets
through the Minimum Funding Guarantee and the matters
which must be dealt with in schemes for financing schools.
The Secretary of State may issue directions to local authority
schemes, including directions to remove particular provisions
in schemes.

Page 4 of 15




1g abed

Review of Statutory Duties

Theme

Legislation

Title of duty

Function - What is it intended to achieved?

Service Area

Ongoing Duty Post
Academisation

Comment

Special Education
Needs

Learning and Skills Act 2000 Section 139A (as
amended by Education and Skills Act 2008, Section
80)

Expands and transfers to the local authorities the duty
currently on the of the Secretary of State to arrange for
assessments of a person’s educational and training needs in
certain circumstances, and his power to arrange such
assessments. The duty on local authorities is to arrange for an
assessment of a person in respect of whom it maintains a
statement of Special Educational Needs - who is either in his
or her last year of compulsory schooling or is over compulsory
school age but still at school - at some time during the
person’s last year of schooling.

To ensure young people with a learning difficulty or disability
are able to secure appropriate learning provision in the Further
Education Sector

Special Educational Needs

YES

Estates Care Standards Act 2000. Secondary - Includes Places duty of care on local authorities to ensure standards in |Ensuring decent standards in children's homes. YES
regulations governing children’s homes and secure |[children’s homes are maintained to a specified level.
units (e.g. Children’s Homes Regulations 2001).
Special Education The Special Educational Needs (Provision of Publication of information about Special Educational Needs Publishing information on the local authority’s Special Special Educational Needs YES
Needs Information by Local Education Authorities) (SEN). Educational Needs policies and the arrangements and
(England) Regulations 2001 (SI1 2001/2218). activities in carrying them out.
Children in Care Children Act 1989 Paragraphs 19A, 19B and 19C of |Duties on local authorities in relation to children about to leave | To ensure good pathway planning for the child so that from the YES
Schedule 2. care (eligible children). age of 16 the local authority, in full consultation with the child,
Secondary - Children (Leaving Care) England) develops a pathway plan that identifies the needs of the child
Regulations 2001 but from the 1 April 2011 this and how they relate to their future requirements as they
group of children will be covered in the Care approach adulthood.
Planning, Placement and Case Review (England)
Regulations 2010.
Children in Care Children Act 1989 Section 23A(3). Care leaver support for former looked after children who reach |To provide this group of young people with the same care YES
Secondary - Regulation 4 of the Children (Leaving |age 16 when in custody or in hospital. leaving entitlements as "relevant children" (see below). Even
Care) (England) Regulations 2001. From 1 April though the local authority does not accommodate them, it
2011 this group of children will be covered in the must keep in touch and maintain the young person's pathway
Care Leavers (England) Regulations 2010. plan.
Children in Care Children Act 1989 Section 23C(5A), amended by Paying a higher education bursary to a former "relevant child" |To help formerly looked after children make a successful YES
the Children and Young Persons Act 2008, which  |who pursues higher education in accordance with their transition to adulthood, the local authority has to pay a fixed
came into force in August 2009. pathway plan. amount in the form of a bursary for those who are undertaking
Secondary - The Children (Leaving Care) (England) a course of higher education. The section confers on the
Regulations 2001 [from 1 April 2011, the Care relevant national authority (HMG / WAG) a regulation making
Leavers (England) Regulations 2010] and The power to specify the amount of the bursary and the
Children Act 1989 (Higher Education Bursary) conditions/arrangements for payment and recovery.
(England) Regulations 2009.
Special Education The Education (Special Educational Needs) (City |SEN payments to Academies in relation to pupils with Sets out arrangements whereby local authorities may make Special Educational Needs YES
Needs Colleges) (England) Regulations 2002 (Sl statements. Duty is to review the payment arrangements in payments to an approved Academy in respect of a child for
2002/2071). the event that any such arrangements are made. whom a statement is made. Local authorities are required to
review the payment arrangements, in consultation with
governing bodies.
School Governors Education Act 2002 section 19, amended by Sets out requirements for governing bodies of maintained School Improvement NO
Education Act 2011 sections 38 and 39. Secondary |schools including appointment of at least one LA governor and
- School Governance (Constitution) (England) that the LA must give notice of any removal of an LA governor.
Regulations 2007, School Governance
(Constitution) (England) Regulations 2012
Education Education Act 2002 section 20 . Secondary - School| To make the Instrument of Government for all maintained Provides a framework for decision making and accountability. 'School Improvement NO
Governance (Constitution) (England) Regulations | schools and federations of maintained schools
2007. School Governance (Federations) England
Regulations 2007. School Governance
(Constitution) (England) Regulations 2012.
School Governors Section 22 of the Education Act 2002. To provide training and information for school governors. To provide information they consider appropriate and training | School Improvement NO
they consider necessary free of charge for governors of
maintained schools to enable governors effectively to
discharge their duties.
School Governors Education Act 2002 section 34. Secondary - School |Provides for LA to set up a temporary governing body for new Ensures that new schools have a temporary governing body NO
Governance (New Schools) (England) Regulations 'maintained schools until the governing body is constituted for |until permanent governing body is constituted.
2007. the school under an instrument of government.
Assessment The Education (National Curriculum) (Key Stage 1 |Key Stage 1: Local authorities must make provision for Requirement for local authorities to moderate assessment in | School Improvement NO
Assessment Arrangements) (England) Order 2004 'moderating teacher assessments in respect of the schools at least 25% of schools to ensure consistency of standards.
(article 6) (made under section 87 of the Education |which they maintain in relation to at least 25% of all relevant | This requirement has been reviewed and confirmed following
Act 2002). schools. the commitment in the White Paper 'The Importance of
Teaching .
Assessment Assessment and reporting arrangements for Early | Key Stage 1: Local authorities must collect teacher Key Stage 1 data is reported to the Department for Education |School Improvement NO
Year Foundation Stage and Key Stage 1 — assessment information from their maintained schools, quality for school performance monitoring purposes. This requirement
document has statutory force by virtue of section assure it and submit it to the Department for Education. has been reviewed and confirmed following the commitment in
87(11) of the Education Act 2002 and article 9 of Sl the White Paper 'The Importance of Teaching .
2004/2783, but also includes non-statutory
guidance to local authorities
Assessment Assessment and reporting arrangements for Early |Key Stage 1: Local authorities should offer schools training Ensuring schools are equipped to undertake Key Stage 1 School Improvement NO

Years Foundation Stage and Key Stage 1 —
document has statutory force by virtue of section
87(11) of the Education Act 2002 and article 9 of Sl
2004/2783, but also includes non-statutory
guidance.

and advice on all aspects of assessment at Key Stage 1 and
ensure they have an electronic system to submit Key Stage 1
data.

teacher assessment and capture / submit results.

Page 5 of 15




Review of Statutory Duties

Theme

Assessment

Assessment

Curriculum

Curriculum

Curriculum

Curriculum

Education

Schools

Financial Reporting

Teachers' Pay

Teachers and staff

Adoption

Adoption

gg obed

Legislation

Assessment and reporting arrangements for Early
Years Foundation Stage and Key Stage 1 —
document has statutory force by virtue of section
87(11) of the Education Act 2002 and article 9 of SI
2004/2783, but also includes non-statutory
guidance.

The Education (National Curriculum) (Key Stage 2
Assessment Arrangements) (England) Order 2003
(article 6) (made under section 87 of the Education
Act 2002 and article 11 of the Order).

Education Act 2002 Section 79

Education Act 2002 Section 85(9)

Education Act 2002 Section 85A(5), amended by
Education Act 2011 section 31

Education Act 2002 Section 88 (1A)

Education Act 2002 section 51A, inserted by
Education Act 2011 section 4. Secondary - The
Education (Pupil Exclusions and Appeals)
(Maintained Schools) (England) Regulations 2002
(No. 3178). The Education (Pupil Exclusions and
Appeals) (Pupil Referral Units) (England)
Regulations 2002.

Education Act 2002 Section 32

Education Act 2002 Section 44enables the
Secretary of State to make regulations to: require
maintained schools to supply accounting
information to the LA which maintains them; and to
require Local authorities to provide accounting

information provided by the schools to the Secretary

of State. Secondary - The Consistent Financial
Reporting (England) Regulations 2012.

Education Act 2002, Part 8 s122 gives the
Secretary of State a power to prescribe pay and
conditions for teachers in maintained schools by
Order. Secondary - The School Teachers’ Pay and
Conditions Order 2012 makes provision for the pay
and conditions of teachers by reference to a
document entitled "The School Teachers' Pay and
Conditions Document" (STPCD).

Education Act 2002 Sections 21, 131 and 210 .
Secondary - ‘The Education (School Teacher
Performance Management) (England) Regulations
2012’

Adoption and Children Act 2002 Section 3.
Secondary - Adoption Agencies Regulations 2005
(S12005/389). Local Authority Adoption Service
(England) Regulations 2003 (SI 2003/370)

Adoption and Children Act 2002 Section 3.
Secondary - The Adoption Support Services
Regulations (SI 2005/691) set out which types of
support services must be extended to which
categories of persons.

Title of duty

Key Stage 1: Local authorities should ensure schools are
aware of the need to store Key Stage 1 task and test materials
responsibly.

Key Stage 2: Local authorities must visit 10% of schools
administering National Curriculum Tests (NCTs) for monitoring
purposes.

Local authorities, governing bodies and head teachers have a
duty to exercise their curriculum functions with a view to
securing that the curriculum in their school satisfies the
requirements of section 78 of the Education Act 2002 -
balanced and broadly based curriculum.

The local authority, governing body or head teacher shall have
regard to any guidance issued by the Secretary of State about
the curriculum.

The local authority, governing body or head teacher shall have
regard to entitlement areas for pupils at key stage 4 (arts,
humanities, DT, modern foreign languages) which is issued by
the Secretary of State

The local authority and governing body of each school is
required to exercise their functions with a view to ensuring,
and the head teacher must ensure, that the National
Curriculum for England and the assessment arrangements
specified in the National Curriculum, are implemented.

Prescribes the duties of the local authority with regard to an
exclusion from a school and appeals against exclusions.
Duties include: receiving information from schools on
exclusions (permanent and fixed term); passing this
information to the Secretary of State for Education when
prescribed; and establishing review panels.

Responsibility for fixing dates of school terms and holidays in
community, voluntary controlled, community special; and
maintained nursery schools.

The local authority must provide the Secretary of State with
any financial statement provided to them in accordance with
regulation 3 by the third Friday in the July following the
financial year in respect of which the statement is made.

The STPCD imposes various duties on relevant bodies in
relation to the determination of teachers’ pay. The local
authority is the relevant body where the school does not have
a delegated budget or where the teacher is an unattached
teacher (Part 1 of the STPCD).

The local authority has to establish a performance
management policy and is responsible for establishing a
written policy. Prior to the policy being established or revised,
there must be consultation with all unattached teachers and
the recognised unions. The local authority must appoint a
reviewer for unattached teachers

A general duty on the local authority to maintain an adoption
service within their area. Further requirements are set out in
the "conduct regulations”, including duties relating to staffing
and managers. Also a related duty to set up an adoption
panel.

Preparing a plan and keeping it under review, where the local
authority decides to provide adoption support services.

Function - What is it intended to achieved? Service Area

Ensuring security of assessment documents. School Improvement

Requirement for local authorities to visit 10% of schools during |School Improvement
test week to ensure they are being administered correctly. The

requirement has been confirmed following the external review

of KS2 testing and accountability.

Ensures that the curriculum provided by maintained primary
and secondary schools is broad based and balanced and that
it comprises the National Curriculum and provision for
religious education and, for pupils in secondary school, sex
education.

To enable the Secretary of State to issue guidance to which
local authorities and schools must have regard about course
of study.

To enable the Secretary of State to issue guidance in relation |School Improvement
to the exercise of functions.

School Improvement

School Improvement

Requirement for local authorities to ensure head teachers fulfil ' School Improvement
their statutory duty in implementing and administering Key
Stage assessment arrangements. Basic feature first laid out
in the Education Reform Act 1988 to deliver the national
curriculum. Part 6 of the Education Act 2002, as amended,
provides for the current curriculum requirements in maintained
schools. This requirement has been reviewed and confirmed
following the external review of KS2 testing and accountability
and the commitment in the White Paper 'The Importance of
Teaching'.

Provides a framework for exclusion to control how pupils are
removed from school and provides independent scrutiny.

Behaviour Support

Fixes the minimum number of sessions which schools must
hold in a year and requires governing bodies to set the times
of the school sessions.

The CFR Regulations require schools to report on their income |Finance
and expenditure to a common framework. All publicly funded

schools need to keep accounts for reasons of public

accountability, and this happened before CFR. The

standardisation through CFR means that schools are able to
benchmark their spend against others which helps them

become more efficient. Increasing the detail in CFR improves
benchmarking. CFR data is used to feed into outturn returns

under section 251 of the Apprenticeships, Skills, Children and

Learning Act 2009: previously local authorities had to fill in

details of school expenditure separately. In the interests of
transparency all of this data is published by DfE.

In practice most decisions about pay are delegated to school 'Human Resources
governing bodies and the local authority is expected to

support, challenge and advise its schools on financial

propriety (including audit of other maintained schools). A

national framework ensures there is no requirement on

individual schools and local authorities to negotiate teachers’

terms and conditions. The Government has made a

commitment to give more freedoms and flexibilities over

teachers' conditions and pay.

To ensure effective performance management arrangements |Human Resources
are put in place for teachers

This duty must include making arrangements for the adoption
of children and the provision of adoption support services. As
part of this, local authority must complete a statement of
purpose and a children's guide.

Ensuring that various procedures are followed, including the

appointment of an adviser, where the local authority decides to
provide adoption support services.

Page 6 of 15

Strategic Place Planning

Ongoing Duty Post
Academisation
NO

NO

NO

NO

NO

NO

YES

NO

NO

NO

NO

YES

YES

Comment

This statutory duty seems questionable in light of the
Education White Paper proposal that Alternative Provision
funding from the High Needs Block (from which provision
for permanently excluded pupil/pupils with health needs are
funded) transfers to schools.



6g abed

Review of Statutory Duties

Theme Legislation Title of duty Function - What is it intended to achieved? Service Area Ongoing Duty Post Comment
Academisation
Adoption Adoption and Children Act 2002 Sections 2, 18, 19, |Detailed provision in relation to functions and duties of To ensure that adoption processes are undertaken efficiently YES
22, 30-35 . adoption agencies at various stages of the adoption process. |and effectively - including matching and decision making - in
Secondary - Adoption Agencies Regulations 2005 |“Adoption agency” is defined as a local authority or registered |the best interests of the child.
(S12005/351) (made under s.9 of the 2002 Act) adoption society (Voluntary Adoption Agency). Also ensuring that the local authority only places a child for
adoption where they are satisfied that the child ought to be
placed for adoption, either with parental consent or a
placement order (an order of the court authorising an LA to
place a child for adoption).
Adoption Adoption and Children Act 2002 Section 56. Keeping prescribed information in relation to an adopted This applies to all adoption agencies, including local YES
Secondary - (see the Disclosure of Adoption person . authorities.
Information (Post-Commencement Adoptions) Regs
2005 (SI1 2005/888).
Adoption Adoption and Children Act 2002 section 56. Access to Information and Intermediary Services - Duty on the |This applies to local authorities in their capacity as adoption YES
Secondary - (see the Disclosure of Adoption adoption agency to keep prescribed information in relation to |agencies.
Information (Post-Commencement Adoptions) Regs |an adopted person .
2005 (SI 2005/888).
Adoption Adoption and Children Act 2002 Section3(2). Making arrangements for the provision of adoption support To ensure that local authorities provide support to adopters YES
Secondary - The Adoption Support Services Regs |services. Adoption Support Services are defined in section and adopted children. Regs prescribe the activities considered
2005 (S12005/691). 2(6) of the 2002 Act. By virtue of the Adoption Support to be Adoption Support Services.
Services Regs 2005 the LA may provide these facilities by
securing their provision by e.g. registered adoption societies,
another LA, a registered adoption support agency.
Adoption Adoption and Children Act 2002 Act Sections 83 Responsibilities in relation to inter-country adoption. In non Ensures that adoption agencies assess prospective adopters YES
Secondary - Adoptions with a Foreign Element Convention cases, a duty to review and visit a child once it in accordance with the regulations before the child can be
Regulations 2005 (‘FERs’): Non-Hague Convention |has been brought into the country. brought into the UK.
(s.83) cases Also that they visit and review the child's placement; and
provide pre and post adoption support to prospective
adopters.
Safeguarding Children|Education Act 2002 (introduced 1 June 2004) Duty on local authorities in relation to their education functions |Aims to ensure that safeguarding is integral to all that local YES
Section 175 to ensure that these functions are exercised with a view to authorities do in carrying out their education functions. Applies
safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children. The to: Local authorities in their education functions (and also to
authority must have regard to guidance given by the Secretary |governing bodies of maintained schools, governing bodies of
of State (in England)/ Welsh Ministers (in Wales). Further Education institutions; independent schools).
Curriculum Education Act 2002 Sections 79 (6) and (7). General duties in respect of sex education and the curriculum. | To have regard to statutory guidance on sex education issued 'School Improvement NO
by the Secretary of State when exercising any function that
may affect the provision of sex education in maintained
schools
Teachers and staff The Education (School Teachers Prescribed Require maintained and non maintained special schools in Relates to local authorities in their capacity as employers of Human Resources NO
Qualifications) (England) Regulations 2003 and The |[England to check that their teachers have Qualified Teacher |teachers in maintained schools.
Education (Specified Work and Registration) Status or fall within the special categories outlined in the
(England) Regulations 2012 and Education (School regulations and sets out qualifications they must have.
Teachers) (Qualifications and Specified Work)
(Miscellaneous Amendments) (England)
Regulations 2012
Teachers and staff The Education (Health Standards) (England) Require schools to ensure that staff involved in relevant Relates to local authorities in their capacity as employers of Human Resources NO
Regulations 2003 activity or teaching meet the necessary health and physical teachers in maintained schools.
capacity required to do their job.
Teachers and staff The Education (Specified Work and Registration) | Requires school teachers to be qualified. Relates to local authorities in their capacity of employers of Human Resources NO
(England) Regulations 2012 and Education (School teachers in maintained schools
Teachers) (Qualifications and Specified Work)
(Miscellaneous Amendments) (England)
Regulations 2012
Inspection Local Authority accountability: (1) s20 Children Act |(1) Joint Area Reviews: regulations require the local authority |Inspection of local authority children's services - (1&2) There YES
2004 and The Children Act 2004 (Joint Area to distribute the report and produce and distribute a post is no current programme of full joint area reviews, however,
Reviews) Regulations 2005 (2) s137 Education & |inspection action plan (2) Reports of inspections under section |the legislation is used for the programme of 3 yearly
Inspections Act 2006 and The Education & 136: requires the LA to distribute the report and produce and |inspections of safeguarding and looked after children. There is
Inspections Act 2006 (Inspection of Local distribute a post inspection action plan as specified in no current programme of s136 inspections of local authorities,
Authorities) Regulations 2007(3) s.141 Education & [regulations. (3) Power to require information etc: requires the |but the legislation could be used for ad hoc inspections.
Inspections Act 2006 local authority to provide the Chief Inspector with any Where an inspection takes place under either provision, the
information or document she requires in relation to local duties on the local authority ensure that: relevant bodies /
authority performance of its functions or in connection with her |persons are aware of the outcome of the inspection; the local
own functions. authority responds to the report; and relevant bodies / persons
are made aware of that response. (3) Facilitates the process of
inspection and assessment of a local authority.
Children and Young |Children Act 2004 Section 11 . Duty to make arrangements for ensuring that their functions  |The aim is to ensure that safeguarding is integral to all that YES
People are discharged having regard to the need to safeguard and local authorities do.
promote the welfare of children; and applies where services
provided through a third party.
Safeguarding Children|Children Act 2004, sections 13. (Sections 14 - 16  |Local authority duty to establish a Local Safeguarding Children|Safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children requires YES

refer to the functions, procedure and funding of
Local Safeguarding Children Boards). Secondary -
Local Safeguarding Children Boards Regulations
2006, S| 2006/90.

Board (LSCB), to ensure representatives of various bodies
and of the local community are included on it, and to co-
operate with the “Board partners”. The LSCB co-ordinates
what is done by partners to safeguard and promote the welfare
of children. The LSCB has a range of specific functions
including serious case reviews, reviews of child deaths and
the production of an annual report.

effective co-ordination in every local area. The LSCB is the
key statutory mechanism for agreeing how the relevant
organisations in each local area will co-operate to safeguard
and promote the welfare of children in that locality.

Page 7 of 15




0s obed

Review of Statutory Duties

Theme

Legislation

Title of duty

Function - What is it intended to achieved?

Service Area

Ongoing Duty Post
Academisation

Comment

Children and Young
People

Children Act 2004 Section 18

Duty to appoint a Director of Children’s services to fulfil the
functions of the local authority as they relate to children and
young people, including education, children’s social care and
local partnerships

To provide a single line of accountability within the local
authority for services to children and to promote co-operation
to improve children's well-being among partners in the local
area

YES

Education White Paper indicates possible changes.

Children and Young |Children Act 2004 Section 19 Duty to designate a Lead Member for Children’s Services to | To provide a single line of political accountability within the YES Education White Paper indicates possible changes.
People discharge functions of the local authority as above local authority for services to children and to promote co-
operation to improve children's well-being among partners in
the local area
Children and Young |Children Act 2004 Section 10 (1) Duty to co-operate’ — to make arrangements to promote co- To promote and encourage better co-operation and YES Still applicable in relation to potential changes arising from
People operation between the local authority; each of the authority’s  |partnership working among the various agencies which the Education White Paper?
relevant partners, and such other persons or bodies the provide or commission services for children (and families) at
authority consider appropriate to improve outcomes for every organisational level from strategic planning to front line
children. Those outcomes are defined as the five Every Child multi agency team work
Matters outcomes: be healthy, stay safe, enjoy and achieve,
make a positive contribution and achieve economic well-being
Children and Young |Children Act 2004 Section 10(3) Duty to have regard to the importance of parents and carers in |To highlight the importance of families to children's well-being YES
People improving children’s wellbeing. in the Children Act 2004.
Children and Young | Children Act 2004 Section 12A as amended by the |Duty to establish a Children’s Trust Board as part of the wider |To standardise existing arrangements by creating a statutory NO
People Apprenticeship, Skills, Children and Learning Act  |co-operation arrangements. body in every local authority area to oversee the co-operation
2009 arrangements to improve children's well-being. The
Government has announced its intention to repeal this
requirement.
Complaints Education Act 2005 Sections 11B and 11 Power of Chief Inspector to investigate complaints about To facilitate the investigation, by Ofsted, of a parental School Improvement NO
schools: Duty on local authority, if requested to do so by the  |complaint about a maintained school.
Chief Inspector, to (1) provide information relevant to an
Ofsted investigation of a parental complaint about a school
maintained by the local authority; (2) make arrangements for
meeting for parents to be held (where the school does not
have a delegated budget); (3) provide a copy of the Chief
Inspector's report to parents (where the school does not have
a delegated budget).
Schools Education Act 2005 Section 15 amended by If after a section 5 inspection the Chief Inspector considers a | To ensure local authorities take action when a school goes School Improvement NO
Education Act 2011 Section 40 school to require special measures or significant improvement, |into an Ofsted category.
local authorities are required to consider what action to take in
light of the report and prepare a written statement of action
they propose to take in light of the report and to send a copy to
the Chief Inspector, and in the case of a voluntary aided
school, the person who appoints the foundation governors and
the appropriate appointing authority.
Adoption Adoption and Children Act 2002 Sections 61, 62 Disclosing, where appropriate, ‘protected information’ about Sets out how adoption agencies should manage information YES
Secondary (post commencement) - Adoption adults/children following an application, and obtaining the about adoptions.
Agencies Regulations 2005- duty to keep views of the person the information is about (or Ensures those involved in adoption have access to
child/prospective adopter (PA) case records. parent/guardian/child if the information is about a child) before |appropriate information
Disclosure of Adoption Information (Post- doing so. and that contact between adopted persons and their birth
Commencement Adoptions) Regs 2005 . Retaining adoption information for certain periods and keeping |relatives can be facilitated where appropriate.
Secondary (pre-commencement) - Adoption it secure and confidential.
Information and Intermediary Services (Pre-
Commencement Adoptions) Regs 2005. Adoption
Agencies Regulations 1983.
Adoption The Adoption Support Services Regs (SI 2005/691) |Where the local authority decides to provide adoption support |The Regs also place a duty on the local authority to appoint an YES
set out which types of support services must be services, they have a duty to prepare a plan and keep this adoption support services adviser; set out the procedure for
extended to which categories of persons. under review. There is a duty on the local authority to review |the local authority to follow when carrying out an assessment
the provision of support services/financial support where, for |for support services and financial support; and impose a duty
example, there is a change in that person’s circumstances, or |on the local authority to give the person requesting an
annually. assessment notice of the proposed decision to allow for
representations.
Adoption Adoption and Children Act 2002 Section 84. Preparing reports for the court in relation to applications for Ensuring that adoption agencies understand and comply with YES
Secondary - Adoptions with a Foreign Element parental responsibility orders where a child is being taken out |inter-country adoption procedures to protect children who are
Regulations 2005. of the UK for the purposes of adoption. being adopted outside of the UK, providing relevant
In Convention cases, providing counselling and information, |information for the courts so that they are able to make fully
undertaking assessments and reports, and exchanging informed decisions.
relevant documents.
Adoption Private Fostering Regulations 2005 For local authorities to safeguard privately fostered children in |To assess and monitor private fostering arrangements to YES
their area ensure that they are safe and suitable for children
Establishment of New |Education and Inspections Act 2006 Sections 6a, 7, |Local authorities to follow the prescribed statutory process Outlines the statutory process and local decision making Strategic Place Planning YES Replaced by the Free School process.
Schools 9,10 and 11, amended by Education Act 2011 when considering inviting proposals / considering proposals to |arrangements. Requires local authorities to give precedence
section 37. Secondary legislation - The School establish new schools to academy proposals when they consider that there is a need
Organisation (Establishment and Discontinuance of for a new school in their area.
Schools) (England) Regulations 2007.
Closure of Schools  |[Education and Inspections Act 2006 Section 15 . Local authorities to follow the prescribed statutory process Local authorities are able to take an overview to plan the Strategic Place Planning NO
Secondary legislation - The School Organisation when proposing the closure of existing maintained schools. provision of schools to meet local needs
(Establishment and Discontinuance of Schools)
(England) Regulations 2007. (applies to Local
authorities).
Alterations of Existing Education and Inspections Act 2006 Section 19 . Local authorities to follow the prescribed statutory process Outlines the statutory process and local decision making Strategic Place Planning NO

Schools

Secondary legislation - The School Organisation
(Prescribed Alterations to Maintained Schools)
(England) Regulations 2007.

when proposing alterations to existing schools.

arrangements. To ensure a consistent, open and transparent
process when proposing changes to existing maintained
schools.

Page 8 of 15




Review of Statutory Duties

Theme Legislation
Complaints Education and Inspections Act 2006 Section 60
Complaints Education and Inspections Act 2006 Section 63

Intervention Education and Inspections Act 2006 Section 64

Intervention Education and Inspections Act 2006 Section 65

Intervention Education and Inspections Act 2006 Section 66

Estates Sections 18, 19, 21, 22, 23, 24, 31, 181 and 183
Education and Inspections Act 2006. Secondary -
The School Organisation (Prescribed Alterations to
Maintained Schools) (England) Regulations 2007.

Safeguarding Children|Safeguarding Vulnerable Groups Act 2006

Teachers and staff Education Act 2006 Sections 60A and 69B.

Early Years Childcare Act 2006 Section 1

Early Years Childcare Act 2006 Section 1(3) and (4). Secondary
- Local Authority Targets (Well-Being of Young
Children) Regulations 2007 (Sl 2007 / 1415) as

amended by 2008 regulations.

§g obed

Title of duty

If an LA issues a performance, standards and safety Warning
Notice (WN) to a governing body of a school it must comply
with a set of statutory requirements (e.g. WN must be in
writing; it must set out the matters which have caused
concern, the action which the governing body is required to
take to remedy those matters, the initial period when they must
remedy the concerns or make representations to Ofsted and
the action the LA are minded to take if the governing body fail
to take the required action).

If a local authority requires a school eligible for intervention
(other than where a warning notice has been given under
section 60A ) to enter in to ‘arrangements’ (e.g.
collaboration/federation etc), the local authority must consult
the Governing Body of the school and, in the case of
foundation or voluntary schools, the appropriate diocesan or
appointing authority. If the school is eligible for intervention
because a warning notice has been given under section 60 of
the Act, the power must be exercised within 2 months following
the end of the compliance period.

Power fo LA to appoint additional governors if the school
eligible for intervention. If school is eligible for intervention for
failure to comply with a warning notice - this power only lasts
for 2 months after warning notice has been given and not
compoied with by GB.

If local authorities want to put in place an Interim Executive
Board (IEB) in a school eligible for intervention, they must
apply to the Secretary of State for consent and before

doing so, must consult the Governing Body and in the case of
foundation or voluntary schools, the appropriate diocesan or
appointing authority.

If a local authority decides to give notice to a governing body
of a school eligible for intervention that it is suspending its
right to a delegated budget, the power must be exercised
within 2 months following the end of the defined compliance
period where it is eligible for intervention for failing to comply
with a warning notice.

Transfer of land on the change of a school category

Imposes various requirements on (among other bodies) local
authorities, including requirements: not to employ barred
people to do ‘regulated activity’ (s7 and s9); to check that their
employees/volunteers are subject to monitoring (Independent
Safeguarding Authority -registered (ISA) before permitting
them to engage in regulated activity (was s10(1) - repealed by
the Protection of Freedoms Act 2012, s115(1), (2), Sch 9, Pt 6,
paras 43, 50, Sch 10, Pt5); to refer individuals to the ISA (e.g.
where they are removed from regulated activity) (s39); and to
give information to the ISA on request (s40).

The Secretary of State may direct the local authority to give a
warning notice to the governing body under section 60A if the
local authority decides not to do so. The local authority must
comply with that direction. (Section 60A confers power on local
authorities to give a warning notice (a teacher’s pay and
conditions warning notice) to a governing body where it is
satisfied that the governing body have failed to comply with
any provision of a School Teachers’ Pay and Conditions Order
which applies to teachers or the governing body has failed to
secure that the head teacher complies with any such
provision.)

Section 72 of the 2006 Act imposes a duty on local authorities
to have regard to guidance.

General duty to improve the well-being of children under five
and reduce inequalities.

Local authorities are required to act in manner best calculated
to meet targets set for them by the Secretary of State.

Function - What is it intended to achieved? Service Area

It is intended to achieve early intervention by local authorities | School Improvement
in schools causing concern. A school is eligible for

intervention if it is in an Ofsted category or if it fails to comply

with a valid warning notice issued by a local authority where

there are concerns over performance, poor management and

governance or where the safety of pupils and staff are

threatened.

To allow a local authority to require a school eligible for
intervention to enter into a contract or arrangements with
another school, FE college or named person for the purpose
of school improvement.

School Improvement

To strengthen the local authority voice on the Governing Body |School Improvement
and/or to appoint governors with expertise in key areas to
support a school's improvement.

To secure a step change in the leadership and membership of School Improvement
a school through a specially appointed Governing Body for a
temporary period.

For the school to secure control over staffing and spending
decisions in order to achieve improvements or where the
budget is proving a distraction from improvement priorities.

School Improvement

Legislation governs transfer of land from one body to another | Strategic Place Planning
as a school changes category, e.g. if a community school
becomes a Trust.

Duties apply to local authorities and others. Duty to refer and |Human Resources
provide information to the ISA is intended to assist ISA in

relation to its barring functions. All duties, save those relating

to subject to monitoring are in force. This is currently subject to

a review

The intention is to provide a safeguard so that local authorities ' Human Resources
(or ultimately the Secretary of State) can ensure that teachers

receive their statutory entittements regarding their terms and

conditions.

Places a duty on local authorities to improve the outcomes of |Strategic Place Planning
all children under 5 and close the gaps between groups with

the poorest outcomes and the rest by ensuring early years'

services are accessible to all families.

Section 1 gives powers to Secretary of State to set targets in
relation to the local authority early years outcome duties and
underpinning regulations set out the process to be followed.
i.e. local authority targets set must relate to the Early Years
Foundation Stage Profile.

Local authorities are under a duty to act in response to targets
set for them by the Secretary of State in relation to Early Years
outcomes, but the Secretary of State no longer sets any such
targets so this duty has no practical effect.

Page 9 of 15

Ongoing Duty Post
Academisation
NO

NO

NO

NO

NO

NO

YES

NO

YES

NO

Comment



gs abed

Review of Statutory Duties

Theme Legislation Title of duty Function - What is it intended to achieved? Service Area Ongoing Duty Post Comment
Academisation
Early Years Childcare Act 2006 Section 3 Specific duties in relation to early years services. Includes Section 3 encourages local authorities to work with health Early Years YES
duties to: make arrangements to ensure integrated provision |services and employment services when arranging early years
of early years services; take steps to identify parents not using |services. It also encourages them to take into account the
services and to encourage them to do so; take reasonable views of interested parties, and to promote early years
steps to encourage the involvement of various interested services to those parents least likely to use them.
parties in the making and implementation of arrangements
made under this section of the Act; have regard to such
information about the views of young children as is available;
and have regard to statutory guidance.
Early Years Childcare Act 2006 Section 4 Duty to make arrangements to work with the National Health | To ensure Local authorities work with National Health Service Early Years NO Defunct
Service Commissioning Board and Job Centre Plus in Commissioning Board and Jobcentre Plus to achieve their
performance of the local authority's duties under sections 1 early years outcome duty.
and 3 of Childcare Act 2006
Early Years Childcare Act 2006 Section 99 . Secondary - The  |Annual collection of Early Years Foundation Stage Profile This duty underpins various information collections and Early Years YES
Childcare (Provision of Information About Young data. Gives power to local authorities to collect information enables the Secretary of State to obtain information collected
Children) Regulations 2009 (SI 2009 / 1554). about individual children receiving early years provision, but  |by local authorities from childcare providers to help compile
also places a duty on local authorities to supply that Early Years Foundation Stage Profile data and the Early Years
information to the Secretary of State if requested. Census returns. Local authorities need a range of information
to exercise their roles and responsibilities effectively. They
are required to provide informatio to parents and families in
their areas about provision.
Information Childcare Act 2006 Section 12. Duty to provide information, advice and assistance The duty is intended to ensure that local authorities establish |Early Years YES
Secondary The Childcare Act 2006 (Provision of and maintain a service providing information, advice and
Information to Parents (England) Regulations 2007. assistance for parents and prospective parents with
information on the provision of childcare and on other services
or facilities, or publications, that may benefit them or children
or young people. They should also provide particular help to
parents from groups likely to find it more difficult to access
suitable childcare, e.g. parents of disabled children.
Children's Centres Childcare Act 2006 Section 5A Duty to secure sufficient children’s centres to meet local need, |Intended to ensure there are sufficient children's centres in all YES
so far as this is reasonably practicable local authority areas
Children's Centres Childcare Act 2006 Section 5C Duty to secure that each children’s centre is within the remit of |Intended to ensure there are advisory boards for all children’s YES
an advisory board centres. These provide advice and assistance to children’s
centre leaders, who are responsible for managing children's
centres
Children's Centres Childcare Act 2006 Section 5D Duty to secure that consultation is carried out before children’s |Intended to ensure that local parents and any other interested YES
centres are opened or closed or have significant changes parties are consulted about any major changes that are
made to services proposed to be made to children's centre provision
Children's Centres Childcare Act 2006 Section 5E(2) Duty to consider whether early childhood services should be |Intended to ensure that local authorities (and Primary Care YES
delivered through one of the children’s centres in the area Trusts and Job Centres Plus) actively consider whether
services to young children and/ or their parents should be
provided through children's centres.
Children's Centres Childcare Act 2006 Section 98C(3) Duty to produce and publish an action plan after an Ofsted Intended to enable parents and others interested in the quality YES
inspection of children's centre provision to see how any concerns arising
during an inspection are going to be addressed.
Childcare Childcare Act 2006 Section 6 Duty to secure sufficient childcare for working parents (or To require local authorities to ensure there is childcare Strategic Place Planning YES
parents in education/training) available to enable parents to take up or remain in work or to
undertake education or training to assist them in obtaining
work.
Childcare Childcare Act 2006 Section 7 as amended by Duty to secure prescribed early years provision free of charge |To ensure that all children under school age, as described in  |Strategic Place Planning YES
Education Act 2011 Section 1 regulations or guidance from the Secretary of State, can
access free nursery education.
Childcare Childcare Act 2006 Section 11 Duty to assess childcare provision To ensure local authorities undertake an assessment to Strategic Place Planning YES
childcare provision in their area to enable them to meet their
duty to secure sufficient childcare for working parents (s6
Childcare Act 2006)
Childcare Childcare Act 2006 Section 13 Duty to provide information, advice and training to childcare | To ensure that local authorities give local childcare providers |Early Years YES
providers, and prospective providers. and would-be providers in their area the necessary support to
help deliver sustainable affordable and high quality childcare
that meets the needs of the community.
Early Years The Early Years Foundation Stage (Learning and Early Years Foundation Stage: places a duty on local Enables local authorities to ensure schools and early years Early Years YES
Development Requirements) Order 2007 authorities to make provision to ensure that early years providers fulfil their statutory duty in implementing and
foundation profile assessments made by providers in their administering early years foundation stage assessment
areas are accurate and consistent, and have regard to any arrangements. The duty is intended to support the accuracy
guidance given by the Department for Education. and consistency of early years foundation stage profile data
reported to parents and practitioners, and by the Department
for Education at national and local authority levels.
School Admissions | The Information as to Provision of Education Information to be provided by authorities to the Secretary of Local authorities must provide the Secretary of State with a Admissions YES

(England) Regulations 2008 No. 4

State

report on secondary school admissions on 1st March (or in
any year which 1st March is not a working day, on the next
working day.)

Page 10 of 15




gg abed

Review of Statutory Duties

Theme

Legislation

Title of duty

Function - What is it intended to achieved?

Service Area

Ongoing Duty Post
Academisation

Comment

Teachers and staff

The Education (Induction Arrangements for School
Teachers) (England) Regulations 2012

Sets out the regulations relating to the need for registered
teachers to complete formal induction periods and for schools
not to employ a person as a teacher unless they have
satisfactorily completed their induction period. This relates to
local authorities in their capacity as employers of teachers in
maintained schools.

It is intended to ensure that all teachers in the maintained
sector have demonstrated that they meet the core professional
standards for teaching. No qualified teacher can be employed
in a maintained school or a non-maintained special school
unless that person has satisfactorily completed an induction
period in accordance with these regulations, subject to various
exceptions.

Human Resources

NO

Schools The Education School Information (England) Local authority to publish composite prospectus Places a duty on local authorities to publish annually, and Strategic Place Planning YES Is this still an appropriate duty for the LA?
Regulations 2008 SI 2008/3093 Regulation 5. make available to parents, a composite prospectus which
includes all local primary and secondary schools.
Amendments to these Regulations (Sl 2010/1006), intended to
broaden the range of statutory information to be included in
composite prospectuses, came into force 1 September 2010.
Special Education The Education School Information (England) Local authority to publish other information for parents Places a duty on local authorities to publish miscellaneous Strategic Place Planning YES Is this still an appropriate duty for the LA?
Needs Regulations 2008 Regulation 8 of SI 2008/3093. information annually (including the making of educational
grants, Special Educational Needs provision, school transport
strategies, school uniform policies etc). The amendments to
these regulations (S1 2010/1006), which came into force on 1
September 2010, do not amend this duty.
Young People Education and Skills Act 2008 Section 68. To make available to young people and relevant young adults |Local authorities have a statutory duty to ‘assist, encourage YES Is this still an appropriate duty for the LA?
such services as they consider appropriate to encourage, and enable’ young people aged 13-19 (and young adults with
enable or assist them to engage and remain in education or  |a learning difficulty and/or disability up to the age of 25) to
training. The services are currently known as Connexions participate in education or training. Services provided under
services. Local authorities must: have regard to any guidance |this duty are delivered under the ‘Connexions’ brand. The
issued by the Secretary of State; comply with any directions Government announced on 4 November 2010 the
given by the Secretary of State relating to the exercise of their | establishment of an all-age careers service by April 2012.
functions under section 68; and can fulfil the duty to make These new arrangements will mean local authorities no longer
services available either by providing them itself or by making |provide a universal careers guidance offer, but they will retain
arrangements with others which could include other local responsibility for providing targeted support for vulnerable
authorities. young people and have greater flexibility to do so.
Young People Education and Skills Act (2008) chapter 2 section |Required to promote the effective participation in education or |Key driver behind Raising the Participation Age. Strategic Place Planning YES Is this still an appropriate duty for the LA?
10 training of the young people in their area to 18 (or 25 for those
with learning difficulties or disabilities). The duty is already
enacted but comes into force in June 2013.
Budget Apprenticeships Skills Children and Learning Act Local authorities must provide information about their planned | The statements are an important means of informing schools, |Finance YES
2009 Sections 251 and 252 . and actual expenditure (annual budget and outturn school forums, the public and Parliament about the funding
statements) on their education functions and their children’s  |plans and spend of local authorities in respect of their schools
social services functions, in accordance with directions given |and their children's services. The statements provide a
by the Secretary of State. consistent format across the country so that meaningful
comparisons can be made between authorities about the
overall education and children's services budgets. This data
collection is the main source of financial information the
Government draws upon to evaluate the effectiveness of its
funding mechanisms. In addition, those data allow schools,
school forums and the Department for Education to challenge
allocations that do not allow for high quality education and
children's services at the front line, and for local authorities to
compare their spending patterns with those of other local
authorities in order to follow good practice.
Teachers and staff The School Staffing (England) Regulations 2009. | The appointment, management and dismissal of staff. Outlines the duties of the local authority (and the governing Human Resources NO
body) in relation to the appointment, management and
dismissal of staff.
Teachers and staff School Staffing (England) Regulations 2009 Require schools in England to keep a register or single central Human Resources NO
record of the recruitment and vetting checks carried out on
staff.
Safeguarding Children|The Local Safeguarding Children Boards To ensure local authorities take reasonable steps to ensure To ensure local authorities take reasonable steps to ensure YES
(Amendment) Regulations 2010 - SI 2010/622 representation of schools and further education institutions on |representation of schools (maintained and independent) and
(under Children and Young Persons Act 2009) the Local Safeguarding Children Boards further education institutions on the Local Safeguarding
Children Boards
Over compulsory Apprenticeships, Skills, Children and Learning Act |Duty in respect of education and training for persons over That local authorities act as the strategic commissioner of Strategic Place Planning YES Is this still an appropriate duty for the LA?
school age (2009) Part 2 section 4linserts sections 15ZA and |compulsory school age: provision for young people aged 16-19 (and those aged up to
15ZB into the Education Act (1996) 25 who are subject to a learning difficulty assessment).
Over compulsory Apprenticeships, Skills, Children and Learning Act |Encouragement of education and training for persons over To ensure local authorities encourage participation in Strategic Place Planning YES Is this still an appropriate duty for the LA?
school age (2009) Part 2 section 42 inserts section 15ZC into  |compulsory school age. education and training.
Education Act (1996)
Education Apprenticeships, Skills, Children and Learning Act |Duty to provide for named individuals Local authorities, if necessary, can require a provider to make |Strategic Place Planning YES Is this still applicable?
(2009) Part 2 section 44 inserts section 51A into provision for a named individual
Further and Higher Education Act 1992
Education Apprenticeships, Skills, Children and Learning Act | Duties in relation to the core entitlement. Defines the core entitlement and the local authority's role in Strategic Place Planning NO
(2009) Part 2 section 45, inserts section 17A - 17D securing this. The core entitlement comes into force from the
in the Education Act (1996) academic year 2013/14.
Special Education Apprenticeships, Skills, Children and Learning Act |Provision of boarding accommodation for persons subjectto |Local authorities have a power to secure boarding Special Educational Needs YES
Needs (2009) Part 2 section 46 inserts section 514A - in learning difficulty assessment accommodation for young people aged over 16 but under 25
the Education Act (1996) who are subject to a learning difficulty assessment
Over compulsory Apprenticeships, Skills, Children and Learning Act |Work experience for persons over compulsory school age: Sets out the role of the local authority in securing work YES Is this still an appropriate duty for the LA?

school age

(2009) Part 2 section 47inserts section 560A into
the Education Act (1996)

England

experience for young people aged 16-19 (25)

Page 11 of 15




85 obed

Review of Statutory Duties

Theme

Legislation

Title of duty

Function - What is it intended to achieved?

Service Area

Ongoing Duty Post
Academisation

Comment

Education of Young

Apprenticeships, Skills, Children and Learning Act

Provision of education for persons subject to youth detention

Sets out the role of the local authority in providing education

YES

Offenders (2009) Part 2 sections 48-52 insert various clauses for 16-19s in youth detention in their area
into the Education Act (1996)
Education Apprenticeships, Skills, Children and Learning Act |Power of Local Education Authorities to arrange provision of Strategic Place Planning YES Is this still applicable?
(2009) Part 2 sections 56-57 education at non-maintained schools
Teachers' Pensions | Teachers’ Pensions Regulations 2010 Local Authority is regarded as the employer for pension The Teachers’ Pension Scheme is an occupational pension Human Resources NO
purposes for all teachers in schools maintained by them (Local scheme which benefits employers as well as teachers.
authorities). These specific duties are related to service and
contribution remittance.
Education Equality Act 2010 Section 88 and Schedule 10. This |Accessibility for Disabled Pupils To develop accessibility strategies to facilitate better access to |Strategic Place Planning YES Is this still an appropriate duty for the LA?
came into force on 1 October, replicating duties education for disabled pupils. Under this same legislation
under the Disability Discrimination Act 1995. The schools also have to develop access plans which build upon
Disability Discrimination (Prescribed Times and the local authority access strategy.
Periods for Accessibility Strategies and Plans for
Schools) Regulations 2005
Child Poverty Child Poverty Act 2010 Duties of local authorities and other bodies in England: Tackling child poverty requires action at national and local YES
requires local cooperation arrangements to be made to reduce |levels, and the Child Poverty Act therefore compels both tiers
and mitigate the effects of child poverty in local areas; and the |of government to act (the Act requires the Government to
arrangements to include arrangements to prepare and publish |publish a UK child poverty strategy). Part 2 of the Child
local child poverty needs assessments, and to prepare joint Poverty Act aims to ensure that all local authorities take steps
child poverty strategies for local areas. to enable more effective cooperation at local level, grounded
in strong knowledge and understanding of child poverty in
local areas and leading to clear strategies and plans through
which cooperation and partnership working can have a
demonstrable impact on child poverty in local areas.
Religious Education |Education Act 1996 Section 390 The LA shall convene a Standard Advisory Council for This ensures that where a school serves a community which is |School Improvement YES Why would this still be a role for the LA?
Religious Education (SACRE) who must consider and approve |predominantly of a faith other than Christian, they have the
applications for a determination from a school to modify the flexibility to change the nature of their daily act of collective
type of collective worship (CW) provided to reflect the worship in order to reflect the needs of the local community.
backgrounds and traditions of the school community.
Looked after Children |Children Act 1989 section 22 Duties on local authorities in relation to looked after children: |A looked after child is a child who is subject to care order or YES
duty to safeguard and promote their welfare; duty to ascertain |provided with accommodation by the local authority in exercise
wishes and feelings of child/parents before making any of its social services functions. The duty to take account of the
decision; and in making any decision to give due consideration |wishes and feelings of the child is important to ensure these
to those wishes and feelings and to the child's religious children have a say in key decisions about their life and that
persuasion, racial origin and cultural and linguistic the plan for the child’s care is appropriate to their needs.
background. Required for compliance with articles 12&13 of United Nations
Human Rights Charter.
Looked after Children |Children Act 1989 section 23 Accommodation for looked after children. A child may be The following sets of Regulations set out in detail the local YES
placed back with their parents, with local authority foster authority care planning responsibilities: Arrangements for
parents (which could be family/friend), in a children's home or |Placement of Children (General) Regulations 1991 (Sl
through other arrangements. 1991/890); Placement of Children with Parents etc
Regulations 1991 (S11991/893); and Fostering Services
Regulations 2002 (S1 2002 /57) - Parts 4,5 and 6.
Looked after Children |Children Act 1989 Schedule 2 paragraph 15. Promoting contact between the child and his family. To ensure that local authorities use their best endeavours to YES
promote contact between the child and his family.
Looked after Children |Children Act 1989 Schedule 2, paragraph 19. Making arrangements for a looked after child to live outside Restrictions on the making of such arrangements. YES
England and Wales.
Looked after Children |Children Act 1989 Sections 25A, 25B and 25C , Extending the duties in relation to Independent Reviewing These changes ensure that local authorities appoint a suitably YES
inserted by Children and Young Persons Act 2008, |Officers (IRO) including their appointment, qualifications and |qualified IRO for all looked after children to ensure that care
coming into force on 1 April 2011 —to replace the |responsibilities. planning and case review are done well, reflect the needs of
duty under section 26 the child and take into account their wishes and feelings. The
Secondary - Care Planning, Placements and Case IRO also monitors the performance of the LA in its functions
Review (England) Regulations 2010 and ensures independence and appropriate governance in
decisions about the child's case.
Looked after Children |Children Act 1989 Section 23ZA, inserted by Visits to and contact with looked after children and certain New arrangements to ensure visits take place for children who YES
Children and Young Persons Act 2008. children who cease to be looked after. cease to be looked after as a result of being detained in
Secondary - Care Planning, Placement and Case custody.
Review (England) Regulations 2010 and Visits to
Former Looked After Children in Detention
(England) Regulations 2010 (both
to come into force on 1 April 2011).
Looked after Children |Section 23ZB inserted by the Children and Young |A duty on local authorities to appoint an independent visitor to |This provides for extending the group of looked after children YES

People's Act (this replaces Schedule 2, paragraph
17)

visit, advise and befriend a looked after child of a prescribed
description/in any other case it appears to the local authority it
would be in child’s interests to do so.

for whom an independent person must be appointed to visit,
befriend and advise the child to include all those for whom an
appointment would be in their interests. Under schedule 2 para
17 of the Children Act 1989 a local authority needed only to
appoint an independent visitor to children where
communications/visits from the family were infrequent. It gives
the appropriate national authority the power by regulations to
extend those to whom the duty is owed to prescribed groups of
looked after children.

Page 12 of 15




65 abed

Review of Statutory Duties

Theme

Legislation

Title of duty

Function - What is it intended to achieved?

Service Area

Ongoing Duty Post
Academisation

Comment

Care leavers

Children Act 1989 Sections 23A to 24B
Secondary - Children (Leaving Care) (England)
Regulations 2001 which are to be replaced from 1
April 2011 with new Care Leavers (England)
Regulations 2010.

Care Leavers - Supporting 'relevant children' and ‘former
relevant children’ (care leavers). A relevant child is defined as
a child who is aged 16 or 17, who is no longer looked after,
and who was, before last ceasing to be looked after, an
“eligible child".

A former relevant child is defined as (i) a person who was a
relevant child (and would be one if he was still under 18) or (ii)
a person who was an eligible child when, at the age of 18, he
ceased to be looked after

To support good quality professional practice and ensure that
local authorities provide care leavers with the necessary
support to achieve positive outcomes in adulthood — e.g.
stable accommodation, financial assistance and an up to date
pathway plan. These duties continue until the former relevant
child reaches 21 and in some cases beyond that age.

YES

Care leavers Children Act 1989 sections 23C and 24B Duties on Local authorities in relation to former relevant To provide on-going support and guidance to 18 year old care YES
children: to keep in touch; to continue with the pathway plan leavers particularly with regard to their education.
and the personal adviser; to give financial assistance related
to the child living near the place where he is or will be
employed, so far as his welfare requires it; and to give
financial assistance to the extent his welfare and his
educational or training needs require. These duties continue
until the former relevant child reaches the age of 21, except in
the case of a former relevant child whose pathway plan sets
out a programme of education or training which extends
beyond his 21st birthday in which case the duties to continue
with related financial assistance, the pathway plan, and the
personal adviser continue for as long as he pursues that
programme.
Care leavers Children Act 1989 Section 24C Providing information to another local authority if a care leaver |Ensuring that care leavers are adequately supported by YES
or person qualifying for advice and assistance proposes to live |ensuring that relevant information is shared between local
or is living in the area of that other local authority . authorities when appropriate.
Care leavers Children Act 1989 Part 3 and Parts 4 and 5 under |Complaints may be made about the local authority functions YES
section 24D of the Children Act 1989 specified in regulations and adoption functions and special
guardianship support services or in the case of complaints
“‘leaving care” functions of the local authority
Care leavers Children Act 1989 Section 26A Making arrangements for the provision of advocacy services |To ensure looked after children and care leavers have access YES
Secondary - Advocacy Services and for care leavers and children who make or intend to make to independent advice and advocacy where they feel there are
Representations Procedure (Children) Amendment |representations. serious problems with the quality of the support or care being
Regulations 2004. provided to them.
Adoption Adoption and Children Act 2002 Section 2(8). Providing facilities for inter-country adoption within adoption Extends the duty of Local authorities to provide adoption YES
service. services to include inter-country adoption. Provides that
“adoption” includes the adoption of persons wherever
habitually resident and effected under the law of any country
or territory within or outside the British Islands.
Safeguarding Children|Children Act 1989 section 22 Places a duty on the local authority to apply for a placement YES
order in certain circumstances.
Adoption Children Act 1989 sections 30-35 The local authority may remove a child who has been placed |Allows the local authority to remove a child from an unsuitable YES
for adoption from the prospective adopters and duties on the |placement which is not in the child's best interests and might
local authority where the parent wishes to recover the child or |put the child's welfare at risk, following adoption
the potential adopters wish to return the child.
Adoption Adoption and Children Act 2002 Section 58, 60. Disclosing information to adopted adult if requested and to a  |Ensuring adults who have been adopted have access to YES
prescribed person in prescribed circumstances. information about their background, including their birth family.
Adoption Adoption and Children Act 2002 Sections 4(1). Carrying out an assessment for adoption support services Ensuring that those involved in adoption, at any stage of the YES
Secondary - The Adoption Support Services where specified parties request this. process, have access to adoption support services where
Regulations (SI 2005/691) - set out procedure for appropriate.
assessment
Adoption Hague Convention cases Adoption agency duties to: provide counselling (reg 14); carry |Ensures the UK meets the objectives of the Hague YES
out assessment and prepare potential adopters' report; make a|Convention to protect and safeguard children.
decision as to the potential adopters' suitability to adopt (reg
17); send all relevant information to central authority; consider
Article 16 information and discuss with the potential adopter;
notify the central authority that procedures have been followed
and content for adoption to proceed; inform of proposed
placement; where notice of intention to adopt — duties to
monitor/review in reg 5 apply (see above); various duties
imposed on the local authority if the placement breaks down.
Adoption Adoption and Children Act 2002 Sections 42, 43, 44 |Making an assessment/investigation in relation to applications |The local authority must provide a report to the court where YES
for adoption orders. that child has or has not been placed for adoption by the local
authority.
The local authority must have been given sufficient
opportunities to see the child and prospective adopters in the
home environment.
Safeguarding Children|Children Act 1989 Section 20. Providing accommodation for any child in need in their area  |Ensures children are looked after by the local authority in YES
who appears to require accommodation because there is no  |circumstances where parents or others are unable to do so.
person with parental responsibility for them, they are lost or
abandoned, or the person who has been caring for them being
prevented (permanently or not, for whatever reason) from
providing them with care.
Safeguarding Children|Children Act 1989 Section 21 Accommodation for children in police protection or detention or YES

on remand (Local authority duty to provide)

Page 13 of 15




pg abed

Review of Statutory Duties

Theme

Legislation

Title of duty

Function - What is it intended to achieved?

Service Area

Ongoing Duty Post
Academisation

Comment

Safeguarding Children

Children Act section 25. Secondary - Children
(Secure Accommodation) Regulations 1991 (Sl
1991/1505) and Children (Secure Accommaodation)
(No. 2) Regulations (S1 1991/2034).

Allows a local authority to make an application to the Court to
seek a secure accommodation order.

YES

Safeguarding Children|Children Act 1989 sections 44, 44A, 44B and 45 Allows the Court to make emergency protection orders on the YES
application of a local authority (or other authorised body).
Looked after Children |Children Act 1989 Sections 62, 64. Ensuring that the welfare of children in voluntary and private |Ensuring local authorities focus on improving the safeguarding YES
children’s homes in their area is being safeguarded and and welfare of the children placed in children's homes in their
arranging for children to be visited. area, including those living out of area.
Looked after Children |Children Act 1989 Section 22G Securing sufficient accommodation within the local authority’s |This is intended to lead to an increase in the number and YES
area to meet the needs of their looked after children. range of placements available within the local authority area
and so reduce the use of out of area placements, unless they
are the most appropriate for the child. It should also lead to a
more efficient and cost effective commissioning process.
Looked after Children |Children Act 1989 Section 22C, 22D, 23 Providing accommodation for looked after children and Ensuring looked after children are provided with suitable YES
Secondary - Arrangements for Placement of ensuring that the child's case is reviewed prior to making such |accommodation, which can include placement back with their
Children (General) Regulations 1991 (Sl 1991/890) |arrangements. parents, with LA foster parents (which could be family /
. Placement of Children with Parents etc friends), in a children's home or in other arrangements.
Regulations 1991 (S11991/893) Fostering Services
Regulations 2002 (S1 2002 /57) - Parts 4,5 and 6.
Looked after Children |Children Act 1989 Section 53 . Part 2 of the Care  |Securing sufficient children's homes for the care and Ensuring there is adequate provision of children's homes for YES
Standards Act 2000. accommodation of children looked after by the local authority. |children looked after by the local authority who need such a
Secondary - Children's Homes Regulations 2001 As a provider of children's homes, a local authority must be home, and that the children's homes are maintained and run to
(soon to be replaced by the Children’s Homes 2001 |registered in respect of the home under the Care Standards  |an acceptable standard.
Amendment Regulations). Act 2000, and manage the home in accordance with the
Children's Homes Regulations, which impose various
obligations on providers.
Care leavers Children Act 1989 section 23 Adds a further class of former relevant child” - one who is Due to come into force on 1 April 2011. YES
under 25, to whom section 23C no longer applies, and who
has informed his local authority that he wishes to pursue a
programme of education or training. Duties: to provide a
personal adviser; to carry out an assessment of needs, to
prepare a pathway plan; and to provide financial assistance to
the extent his educational or training needs require it.
Safeguarding Children|Children Act 1989 Section 14A(8) subsection(9) Investigating and preparing a report on the suitability of Facilitating the creation of Special Guardianship Orders (a way YES
Secondary - Special Guardianship Regulations applicants for a Special Guardianship Order on receipt of of providing a permanent home for children in care and
2005 (SI 2005/1109). notice of an individual’s intention to apply. ensuring that the applicant is suitable.
Special Guardianship |Children Act 1989 Section 14F. Making arrangements for provision of special guardian support|Ensuring that local authorities provide support to those YES
Secondary - The Special Guardianship Regulations |services (including financial support). involved in special guardianship. Local authorities may
2005. provide these services by securing their provision by another
local authority or a registered adoption society/registered
adoption support agency/registered fostering agency.
Sixth Form College  |Further and Higher Education Act 1992 Section Requires sixth form colleges to consult with local authorities  Most other local authority duties in relatoin to further education |Strategic Place Planning NO
33E, amended by the Apprenticeships, Skills, before offering or participating in secondary education. are transferred to the Secretary of State by the Education Act
Children and Learning Act 2009 Schedule 8. 2011.
Teachers and staff Education Act 2005 Section 94 as amended by Duty to provide the Secretary of State with any information Reflects the Secretary of State taking over the role of the Human Resources NO
Education Act 2011 Section 15 necessary for school workforce training. Training and Development Agency for Schools. From 1 April
2012 the duty to provide this information to the TDA is
replaced by the duty to provide it to the Secretary of State.
Young People Education Act 1997 section 42A, inserted by Duty to provide independent careers guidance to all pupils in | Specifies local authorities' duties to provide careers guidance Behaviour Support NO
Education Act 2011 section 29 Pupil Referral Units from the ages of 14 to 16. this guidance for pupils in Pupil Referral Units. For schools, this duty rests
must be impartial, and include information on all training on the governing body. Statutory guidance underpinning this
options available both at ages 16 and 18 including will be published shortly.
apprenticeships.
Education Apprenticeships, Skills, Children and Learning Act Powers of Secretary of State to require a local authority to give Allows the secretary of state to intervene in under performing | School Improvement NO
2009 Schedule 13 inserts section 69A into the a warning notice to a maintained schoool. schools.
Education and Inspections Act 2006, amended by
Education Act 2011 section 44.
Education Academies Act 2010 section 6 amended by Requires that local authorities cease to maintain a school Makes clear that section 6(2) of Academies Act 2010, which | School Improvement NO
Education Act 2011 section 58 once it becomes an academy. This does not, however, prohibits a local authority from maintaining a school once it
prevent them from providing goods or services to the academy has converted into an Academy, does not prohibit a local
or making payments for some but not all of its expenses. authority from doing any of the things set out in paragraphs a
to ¢ which do not amount to maintaining a school.
Education Academies Act 2010 section 7 amended by Requires local authorities to pay the proprietor or an academy Finance NO
Education Act 2011 section 57 any surplus in a school's budget when it converts.
Education Academies Act 2010 section 8 amended by Allows the Secretary of State to transfer to converter Legal NO
Education Act 2011 section 59, 63, schedule 14 academies property (including land), rights or liabilities held by
local authorities on behalf of schools which convert.
Special Education Education Act 2011 section 75 inserts section Allows local authorities to make direct payments for services |Enables direct payments for services for special educational |Special Educational Needs YES

Needs

532A, 532B and 532C nto Education Act 1996

for children with special educational needs, and allow the
Secretary of State to set up pilots for such direct payments.

needs.

Page 14 of 15




19 abed

Review of Statutory Duties

Theme

Legislation

Title of duty

Function - What is it intended to achieved?

Page 15 of 15

Service Area

Ongoing Duty Post
Academisation

Comment




This page is left intentionally blank

Page 62



Agenda Item 10

Report No. London Borough of Bromley
CSD16131

PART ONE - PUBLIC

Decision Maker: Education Select Committee

Date: 15 September 2016

Decision Type: Non-Urgent Non-Executive Non-Key

Title: EDUCATION SELECT COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME
2016/17

Contact Officer: Philippa Gibbs, Democratic Services Officer
Tel: 020 8461 7638 E-mail: philippa.gibbs@bromley.gov.uk

Chief Officer: Mark Bowen, Director of Corporate Services

Ward: Borough-wide

1. Reason for report

1.1  This report sets out the Committee’s work programme for the year ahead.

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1 Members of the Education Select Committee are invited to comment on the Work
Programme.

Page 63



Corporate Policy

1. Policy Status: Existing Policy: As part of the Excellent Council stream within Building a
Better Bromley, PDS Committees should plan and prioritise their workload
to achieve the most effective outcomes.

2. BBB Priority: Children and Young People: To secure the best possible future for all
children and young people in the Borough, including a clear focus on
supporting the most vulnerable children and young people in our
community.

Financial

=

Cost of proposal:  No Cost

2. Ongoing costs: Not Applicable

3 Budget head/performance centre: Democratic Services
4, Total current budget for this head: £335,590

5. Source of funding: Council’s Base Budget

Staff
1. Number of staff (current and additional): 8 posts (7.27fte)

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours: N/A

Legal

1. Legal Requirement: No statutory requirement or Government guidance:

2. Call-in: Not Applicable

Customer Impact

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected): This report is intended
primarily for members of this Committee to use in controlling and reviewing their ongoing work.

Ward Councillor Views

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? No
2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments: Not Applicable
2

Page 64



3.3

3.4

3.1

COMMENTARY
Work Programme

The Programme at Appendix 1 provides information on items for consideration by the
Education Select Committee and proposed information briefings for Members. The purpose
of the work programme is to reference future work and enable it to be amended in the light of
future developments and circumstances. The programme will also list the meetings of the
Executive and Working Groups with dates (once scheduled).

Council Member Visits

All Elected Council Members and Co-opted Members are invited to attend Council Member
Visits and are asked to make known their interest by responding to the emails from
cheryl.adams@bromley.gov.uk

The next visits will be organised for the autumn term (Sept — Dec 16),

Non-Applicable Sections: | Policy, Financial, Legal and Personnel Implications

Background Documents:
(Access via Contact
Officer)

Page 65



mailto:cheryl.adams@bromley.gov.uk

Education Programme 2016/17

Appendix One

Schools Forum

30" June 16

SACRE 6" July 16
Education Select Committee 15" September 16
Item Status

Alternative Education

Substantial Item

Schools Forum

13" September 16

Education Budget Sub Committee

27" September 16

Item Status

SACRE 9" November 16
Schools Forum 12" January 17
Education Select Committee 17" January 17
Item Status

SEND Update Short Item

Helping Under Performing Schools

Substantial Item

Education Budget Sub Committee 31* January 17
Item Status
SACRE 8" March 17

Education Select Committee

23" March 17

Item

Status

Missing Children (NEET)

YOS Improvement Plan

Education Budget Sub Committee

28" March 17

Item

Status

Page 66




Report No.
ED17009

Agenda Item 12a

London Borough of Bromley

PART 1 - PUBLIC

Decision Maker:

Date:

Decision Type:

Title:

Contact Officer:

Chief Officer:

Ward:

Education Select Committee

15 September 2016

Non-Urgent Non-Executive Non-Key

OVERVIEW OF ALTERNATIVE PROVISION IN BROMLEY

Julia Cavalli, Head of SEN and Disability
Tel: 020 8313 4169 E-mail: julia.cavalli@bromley.gov.uk

Jane Bailey, Director of Education

All wards

1. Reason for report

1.1 To provide an departmental overview of Alternative Education in the London Borough of Bromley

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1 That Members consider and discuss the content of this report.

1 Page 67



Corporate Policy

1. Policy Status: N/A.
2. BBB Priority: Children and Young People.

Financial

1. Cost of proposal: N/A

2. Ongoing costs: N/A.

3. Budget head/performance centre: 121565 Home and Hospital Service
4.  Total current budget for this head: £955,130

5.  Source of funding: DSG

Staff

1. Number of staff (current and additional):

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours:

Legal

1. Legal Requirement: Statutory requirement.

2. Call-in: Call-in is not applicable.

Customer Impact

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected): 275

Ward Councillor Views

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? N/A.

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments:

2 Page 68



3.

3.1

3.1.1

3.1.2

3.2

3.2.1

3.2.2

3.3

3.3.1

COMMENTARY

Background

All services are aligned to the vision that the best place for all children to be educated is in a
mainstream setting and that being in full time education is one of the most important protective
factors for a vulnerable child. However, there is a small minority of pupils in Bromley who have
significant and complex vulnerabilities that would fall within the term used in the SEN Code of
Practice 2014: social, emotional and mental health issues (SEMH). This is the group of
children who tend to be educated in settings other than mainstream or special schools. It is the
ambition that, wherever possible, children who are in receipt of alternative provision have a
progression plan in order to return to mainstream although it is recognised that for some this
will be post 16 or beyond.

There are a range of alternative settings in Bromley and additionally some children are
electively home educated by parents.

Bromley Beacon Academy

Bromley Beacon Academy (formerly Burwood School) is a special school for young people
with SEMH and subiject to the statutory guidance of the Code of Practice 2014 for Special
Educational Needs regarding admissions and funding. Consequently it is not regarded as an
alternative provision. It is sponsored by Bromley Education Trust which is an arm of Bromley
College of Further and Higher Education. It will offer 70 co-ed places from KS2 to KS5 from
September 2016 over two sites: Avalon Road (KS2 and 3) and Beacon House (KS4 and 5).

The Executive Head teacher, Neil Miller, oversees the two Pupil Referral Units in the Borough
which are also sponsored by Bromley Education Trust.

Alternative Settings
Pupil Referral units- Primary and Secondary

Bromley Pupil Referral Unit became an Alternative Provision Academy (Bromley Trust
Academy, known as BTA) in September 2014, also sponsored by The Bromley Education
Trust. The Local Authority (LA) commissions places at the academy and the BTA/Bromley
Council partnership board meets regularly to monitor performance. The LA has a statutory
duty to educate children from the 6" day following a permanent exclusion, in addition places
can be offered to other pupils who meet the criteria outlined below.

Midfield Campus (primary) 45 places
Hayes Campus (secondary) 90 places

Target groups:

e Pupils who have been permanently excluded from a mainstream or independent school,
including those with statements of SEN.

e Pupils who have been permanently excluded from a special school where BTA and the
Local Authority’s SEN team are in agreement that BTA can meet the needs of the child
on an interim basis.

e Pupils who are new arrivals in to Bromley where a mainstream or special school is
deemed not to be appropriate by the LA.

e Pupils who require an interim placement whilst they are waiting for a statutory
assessment for a mainstream or special school placement.

3 Page 69


http://bromleybeaconacademy-bromley.org.uk/
http://bromleybeaconacademy-bromley.org.uk/

3.3.2

3.4

3.3.1

3.4.2

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.7.1

3.7.2

3.7.3

e Pupils who are at risk of being permanently excluded from a Bromley mainstream
school.

Home and Hospital Service

The Local Authority has a statutory duty to provide education to pupils who cannot attend a
mainstream setting for illness or health reasons. Currently the Local Authority meets this duty
through a Home and Hospital Service which is a combination of classroom based provision for
25 students, the Nightingale Unit, and home tuition for 40-45 students per year. There is also a
classroom at the Princess Royal Hospital which educates children who are inpatients at the
hospital. This is staffed by one teacher and one part time teaching assistant.(The hospital
school received an outstanding judgement in a CQC inspection of the hospital in October
2015)

Discussions are being held with BTA to extend their offer to include the Nightingale Centre. An
application for a free school has been submitted by BTA and is being considered by the DfE.

Other providers
Independent Providers

There are also a small number of other providers within the Borough who provide places for
more complex pupils who cannot be placed at BTA Hayes or the Nightingale Centre.

The Leaning Centre
The Tutorial Foundation (TTF)

Harris Aspire

This is the pupil referral unit for the Harris Academy Group. Bromley pupils attending Harris
schools may be placed there.

Partnership Arrangements

There is a requirement that all internal and external partners work in partnership to deliver a
joined up offer to young people educated in alternative settings.

BTA/Bromley Council Partnership Board

This meets three times per year to oversee arrangements between BTA and the LA.

The Children Out Of Mainstream Education Panel

Includes representatives from all relevant partners and is chaired by the Director of Education.
Where a partner is not required to attend every meeting there is a programme of standing
agenda items identifying when issues relevant to their service or agency are being discussed.

They are automatically be invited to attend these meetings.

The panel has both strategic responsibility for overseeing partnership working and information
sharing as well as a pupil level decision making role.

The purpose of this panel is:

4 Page 70


http://www.thetutorialfoundation.co.uk/
http://www.harrisaspire.org.uk/

3.8

3.8.1

3.8.2

e Ensure that services share information on young people under their care and in need of
an education placement/at risk of their placement breaking down;

e Oversee commissioning arrangements for BTA/Harris Aspire/AP providers and ensure
that what is being commissioned reflects the identified need and priorities in the
Borough;

e Review education outcomes data from services: TTF, YOS, Virtual School, BTA, SEN,
Home and Hospital Tuition, targeted youth support;

e Ensure that all services have high expectations of provision for each young person and
that they all have an Education Progression Plan (or PEP in the case of looked after
children) in place for every child;

e Maintain and interrogate records of children both missing education and at risk of
missing education. Those deemed to be at risk will include all on roll at BTA, BBA,
Virtual School, Home and hospital tuition service including The Nightingale Centre,
those on elective home education, pupils at any other alternative provision;

e Receive reports on permanent exclusions across the borough as well as the use of
preventative services made by individual schools; and

e Receive reports on the management of The Fair Access Protocol and new arrivals into
the Borough.

Referral Processes and Funding Arrangements
The Fair Access Panel

A panel exists for both primary and secondary phases to ensure all children out of mainstream
are offered ‘fair access’ to a school place. The bulk of referrals come through Admissions and
the panels include primary and secondary head teachers as appropriate including the
executive head of BTA. It is the route by which a child deemed ready to return to a
mainstream setting from BTA will be offered a school place.

Schools may also apply for additional support in order to ensure a successful integration.
Schools are expected to detail the provision that they wish to purchase and the expected
outcomes before the money will be allocated.

Core Panel

The Core panel is chaired by the Principal Educational Psychologist and includes
representatives from a range of relevant partners from the police, social care and health.

The remit of this panel has been revised following the new Code of Practice 2014 guidance
and core purposes are:

e to have a strategic overview of children causing concern due to their SEMH and
consider additional actions, including alternative provision;

e to ensure consistency of responses across the Borough;

e to act as a multi professional problem solving group; and

e to be admission arbitrators to The Home and Hospital Tuition Service and The
Nightingale Centre as well as BTA places for children who are deemed as being at risk
of permanent exclusion.

The Core Panel can also allocate the SEMH SEN Advisory teacher to problem solve and
enhance school based interventions to help include a pupil with SEMH.

5 Page 71



3.9

3.9.1

3.9.2

3.9.3

3.94

3.9.5

3.9.6

Elective Home Education (EHE)

This term refers to parents who have elected to educate their children at home as opposed to
sending them to mainstream schools. This can occur at any time during a young person’s
education journey.

Legislation requires Head teachers of all schools to notify the LA of any student who leaves
their establishment to be home educated. On receipt of notification the LA will undertake
checks with social care, prior to an initial home visit by Education Welfare . The purpose of the
visit is to establish that the family are fully aware of what they have undertaken and to ensure
no coercion on behalf of the school has occurred. If during the visit unmet needs of the young
person are identified the family are offered the opportunity of a CAF — Common Assessment
Framework. In addition All EHE cases are handed over to the Education Advisor via CORE,
this enables an holistic overview of the young person and early identification of any possible
safeguarding concerns.

The Education Advisor, via 6 monthly visits, discharges the LA duty in ensuring that the
education provision provided by the parent will enable the child to develop the skills required to
participate fully in contemporary society.

There has been a national increase in declarations of Elective home Education, and this has
been mirrored within Bromley. It should be noted that the number of young people being
electively home educated is not static, with many families choosing to return the young person
to mainstream education within the year.

In the 2015/2016 academic year, EWS received 156 declarations of elective home education
of those declarations 26 returned to mainstream education within the year.

There are currently 215 students that remain as electively home educated as of August 2016.

Non-Applicable Sections: | Policy Implications, Financial Implications, Legal
Implications, Personnel Implications

Background Documents:
(Access via Contact
Officer)

6 Page 72



Agenda Iltem 12b

EEomubEg
Home Education Hub (HE Hub)

# Oak Road

Green Street Green
BR6 TN

31 July 2016

FAQ: Councillor Nicholas Bennett JP, Education Select Committee, Bromley Council

Re — Meeting Scheduled for 7pm, 15 September 2016

What HE Hub does

HE Hub helps to disseminate relevant information to new and long-term (elective) home educating
families based in Bromley and surrounding areas. It also gives parents who are disillusioned with the
traditional school system a place and opportunity to explore alternatives, and engage with others in
similar situations.

Relevant information includes:

- Mainstream news items affecting home education, for example, ministerial appointments,
changes in educational policies, court cases, parliamentary proposals

- What to expect from meetings with local councils

- Changes in home education practices in other parts of the UK and Europe

- Social and educational ad-hoc and regular events

- Educational resources

Dissemination takes place via dedicated home education community forums, Facebook groups and
to a very limited extent, the public website.

Examining the efficiency and effectiveness of alternative education in Bromley

In the absence of a formal measurement of the efficiency and effectiveness of home education in
Bromley, all that can be proffered is surely superficial — post-16 attainments, perhaps.

For the record, we regularly get good news about the successes of children who have either passed
their IGCSEs and going on to do Advanced Level in pursuit of admission onto degree programmes or
those who have been able to obtain apprenticeships within their chosen career fields.

PN Debola. Select Committee Meeting 15 Sep 2016 Page 1

Page 73



During the active home education period, how effective the process is depends to a large extent on:

i

The financial status of the family: Can the children readily access educational resources?
Can they afford events — travel and fees? Can extra tuition be paid for? Can the
parents/carers afford additional or special tools required for a particular child? Can
parents/carers afford extra-curricular activities?

The familial support structure: Is there any respite available for the main educator?
Examinations: Though this is related to 1 above, it deserves a separate heading because it is
a highly contentious issue. IGCSEs are very expensive. My belief is that every child in the
borough should be entitled to at least a FREE first attempt. That parents are made to
privately fund these crucial examinations appears like a punishment being meted out by the
council for daring to ‘go against the norm’. Taking IGCSEs or GCSEs, free of any charge or
condition, should be every child’s right regardless of how or where in the UK the child is
educated.

Special Educational Needs (SENs): Most of the children taken out of the school system have
SENs. The current system adopted by Bromley takes a hands-off approach evidenced by the
NIL provision of support towards the educational needs of the child.

Dialogue: The relationship (or lack of) between the home education community and the
council is dismal. When | started home educating my kids many years ago, | heard nothing
positive about the council, and | imagine the same applies to a host of others.

What should be prioritised

In my view, examining the efficiency and effectiveness of a phenomenon presupposes that all parties
are in agreement, that they understand their respective roles, understand why the event occurs, and
have similar objectives. | feel that what this meeting is about ignores the underlying issues that
should first be addressed. 1 am astounded that a meeting is being called to address the effectiveness
and efficiency of a system that the council has no positive input in.

The following issues need to be looked into:

1. Why home education in Bromley is rising.
The root cause of the continuing dissatisfaction with the traditional school system.
The assistance that can be offered to home educated children to ensure they pursue and
reach their potentials.

4. The lack of an inquiry when kids are pulled from schools.

5. The lack of understanding and empathy for parents who make the very difficult decision to
home educate their children, having tried in vain to make traditional schooling work.

6. The unabated incidences of children being traumatised by bullying in schools.

7. The reactive (rather than proactive) stance of the education department — more needs to be
done to engage with parents whilst their children are still in school. There ought to be a
system in place that allows parents to resolve issues being encountered at school.

8. The reasons why ‘under the radar’ home educating families choose to stay anonymous.

9. The abject lack of council-sponsored facilities (sports, music, etc) for home educating
children during school terms.

Fllmmg@| Debola. Select Committee Meeting 15 Sep 2016 Page 2

Page 74



[Unfortunately, | will not be at the meeting due to work and child care commitments, but | do hope
the above points get discussed, or at the very least, noted.]

P Debola

A /2 hoo.co.uk

info@he-hub.com

[The views and opinions in this document are mine. | do not speak for all the home educating

families in Bromley.]

PEEEER Debola. Select Committee Meeting 15 Sep 2016 Page 3

Page 75



This page is left intentionally blank



lliott Rickwood sits in an executive
chair in the glass and chrome offices
of a private equity company in
Woking, Surrey. There is the click-
clack of high heels. Surfaces are
- decorated with ornamental herbs
in aluminium pots. There is
a company gym. And yet Elliott’s
work isn't about wealthy investors
but A-level practice papers. Elliott,
18, dropped out of his school some months
ago, having decided “the education system
doesn’t suit me”. He is still getting an
education — he sat three A levels this summer
— it’s just no longer happening in a school.
Elliott is one of a growing number of
children being home-educated. Nothing new
in that — almost 37,000 children are schooled
at home according to Freedom of Information
requests to local councils; a rise of 65 per cent
over the past 6 years. What’s unusual about
Elliott’s brand of home education is the cost
— up to £37,000 a year.
The right to educate your child at home
gained momentum in the early Seventies as
a consequence of Sixties progressive thinking
and a growing interest in “alternative”
education. The late Dick Kitto, for example
— a founding member in 1976 of Education
Otherwise, the charity that supports home
educators — had worked at Dartington Hall,
the experimental, coeducational boarding
school in Devon. Famous — or, rather,
infamous - for educating the offspring
of freethinkers, bohemians or those of an
educationally opinionated bent, Dartington
Hall believed education should follow a child’s
interests rather than shape them. Uniforms
were spurned, teachers called by their
first names, class attendance was optional.
Expecting pupils to memorise facts or learn
anything by rote was regarded as oppressive.
But home education has changed. “It
used to be a philosophical ethos. Now it’s
about children having some sort of difficulty
at school,” says Edwina Theunissen,
spokesperson for Education Otherwise.
Problems include bullying (real and virtual:
cyberbullying is a growing problem), exam
pressure, stress. But what's really striking is
the impact of another development. Home
tutoring means that (wealthy) parents now
more than ever enjoy the ability to have
their children educated quickly and easily at
home. Wall-to-wall tutoring or tutored home
schooling does not come cheap (“It’s more
than Eton,” according to one parent), but it is
increasingly an option. Emma Thompson and
her husband, Greg Wise, for example, last year
withdrew Gaia, their 16-year-old daughter,
from her private school in north London in
the run-up to her GCSEs. “She loves learning
and she’s terribly focused and hard-working,”
Wise has explained, “but she didn’t like the

sausage factory of formal education. I've no
argument with that” She is now taught by top
tutors in a shed in their garden. Theunissen

is seeing more parents taking children out of
elite private schools. “It never used to happen,”
she says. Home schooling hasn't only become
more respectable and mainstream; it’s become
a commodity, something to be bought.

Emma Rickwood and her husband, lan,"
do not see themselves as being remotely
alternative. She studied hotel management
and catering at City of Westminster College,
and then worked in sales and marketing
for a consumer goods company. He studied
economics at the University of East Anglia
and then worked for Procter & Gamble and
PepsiCo, where he was European sales and
marketing director. In 2006 he set up Henley
Investments, a private equity and property
firm, where she heads up residential
developments. They live in a village just
outside Guildford in Surrey and, as well as
Elliott, they have a daughter, Charlie, 16.
Elliott was educated at Ripley Court
School, a small private prep in Surrey. Then,

TI'S ALMOST AS IF
WE HAD A BUSINESS
NEED, AND WE HAD
TO FIND A RESOURCE’

aged 13, he went to Cranleigh, the independent
day and boarding school in Surrey where

he boarded from the age of 15. Elliott says that
he enjoyed himself at Cranleigh. According to
the Good Schools Guide, Cranleigh is “ideal for
the sporty, energetic, sociable, independent
and lovely child”, and Elliott identified with
these qualities. He did well in his GCSEs

and was studying biology, maths, French and
economics at A level, but things began to
unravel at the end of lower sixth.

““It started with my AS results,” he says. He
didn’t do as well as he’d hoped. “I realised that
what I had in mind for myself wasn’t going to
happen.” He’d planned to go to America and
study at Columbia or New York University.
He went into the upper sixth full of resolve.
“I thought, ‘OK, I really need to pick it up this
year, to make up for last year’ I got to three
or four weeks in and decided that this was not
what I wanted to do. I didn’t feel motivated.

1 thought, ‘This isn’t making me happy; this

is just draining. I am not enjoying it at all.”
He decided to leave and get a job on the

basis that having no A levels was preferable to

having three U grades. It was a housemaster

who suggested he finish his A levels with the

help of tutors.

re.ani

Agenda Item 12c

Eliott left Cranleigh last
November, and his home-schooling
programme began in January.

He has two tutors who teach him
for a total of 12 hours over three
days. On the two other days he
works for his parents. “Mostly
admin, some accounting, some
spreadsheets,” he says. This, too, he
explains, will look good on his CV.

Elliott is tutored in the office
rather than at home because his
parents wanted him to have
structure and company. He can
also use the gym. Elliott, as it turns
out, doesn’t even see himself as
a home schooler. “That refers to
someone who hasn’t gone to school
and doesn't have friends. It’s not like
that. It’s almost part of a routine as
opposed to solely what I do”

Meanwhile, his mother, imbued
with corporate values, is happy to
see it in business terms. “It’s almost
as if we had a business need, and
we had to find a resource,” she
says. “It’s almost like buying
consultancy.” Even her transactions
with the tutoring agency have
been reassuringly corporate. “Steve
[Spriggs, of William Clarence
Education] is very clever, so I can
speak to him on a business level
and say, actually, I have this
situation, this opportunity — how
can you help? And the way he was
able to fulfil that with his resources
was tremendously reassuring, because
the education world is always a bit of
a mystery to people in business and he
could talk my language.”

The cost, she says, is roughly the same
as Cranleigh — about £34,000 a year. “We
obviously pay for fewer hours, but I think
it’s a higher quality. '

“Clearly, Cranleigh’s education process
is very, very good,” she continues. “But
something was missed with the engagement
element.” The “engagement element” of
tutored home schooling, on the other hand,
incorporates walks with Cookie. “We have a
dog, and Elliott and his tutors take her by the
canal. They bring a book and chat and chat
and chat. That constant backwards and
forwards is clearly resonating.”

Tutored home schooling is a logical
conclusion to the recent boom in the use of
private tutors. “I wanted to provide a great
product and that included home schooling,”
says Stephen Spriggs, who worked as a hedge-
fund manager before setting up William
Clarence Education, a private tuition firm,
three years ago. “I was made redundant after
five long years in the City and came across

24 The Times Magazine

Page 77

=



N fﬂf
_If._f :.!.

-

an advertisement for a part-time maths and
economics tutor. I went along and it opened
my eyes to an industry I didn’t even know
existed,” he says.

Spriggs says that wealthy London-based
foreigners account for 65 per cent of his
business. “They want to go to the schools, but
might not be able to go straightaway.” Other
clients include child actors and professional
athletes, as well as children turned off school
by bullying or excessive pressure.

“I've had some who find boarding stressful,”
says Rebecca Lawrence, a home-education -
consultant and herself an emblem of a
growing market — she’s employed by numerous
tutoring agencies and has clients in London,
Manchester and Newcastle. She’s also noticed
an increase in older students from private
schools. “I think students probably feel more
pressure at private school because the parents
are paying for the education.” Prices range
from £60-£100 an hour.

“The objectives of these parents are just the
same as people whose children are at St Paul’s
or Westminster or Eton,” says Spriggs. “They
want the best for their kids, they want them
to go to the best university or to be happy in

.the job of their choice. If you are paying for a

Freya Willkinsan, 17,
with tutor Omari
Eccleston-Brawn

{English terature

and classics)

TT°S THE PRESSURE
IN PUBLIC SCHOOLS.
I'T’S LIKE A FACTORY

top private school and you are not getting

what you want ~ you are buying a service

from them, after all — why not change it to
something you are happy with?”

Freya Wilkinson, 17, feels grateful almost
daily to be taught at home rather than school.
A self-confessed “homebird”, unlike her
outgoing older sister, Olivia, 19, Freya lives in
an elegant house in southwest London with her
mother, Nadya, a former PA, and her father,
Tim, who works for a large communications
company and is mostly based in Dubai.

At 13, Freya went to a girls’ boarding school
in Ascot, which was quite a shift because she’d
spent the previous two years at a day school
in Kuwait, where her father had been posted.
Olivia, who'd opted to stay and board rather
than go to Kuwait, was already at the school
having a riotous time.

“I was quite excited, because I'd seen Olivia
when we came back for school visits and it

all looked so much fun,” Freya recalls. “But

I was nervous about boarding, because I never
really liked being away from home for longer
than a day.” At that time her father was
working in Dubai, and the plan was to have

a London base and for her parents to live
mostly in Dubai.

She started in September 2012 to find
a particularly high-performing year. “There
were two Russian girls, one Spanish girl, five
Chinese and Japanese girls, plus three other
English girls and every single one of them
was so clever,” says Freya. “They would
all be doing work after prep hours, because
we had exams and then more exams. And
they were all A* students-and I am just not”
Freya is dyslexic — not severely so, but enough
to experience the misery of failure when
compared with her more academic peers.

“She came home one weekend in her
second term and said, ‘T'm not going back,”
says her mother. “She was going to lessons
in a panic, trying to keep up with what was
going on but not really taking anything in.
Then she’d have to rush off to another lesson
not having comprehended what she'd learnt
in the last one.” It was a dismal spiral.

Freya left in January 2013 and a series
of day schools followed. First, a Catholic
girls’ school in London with a caring ethos.
But unfortunately the nurturing air was
underpinned by Catholic dogma. While not
exactly confrontational, Freya “does like a
good debate”, says her mother. “I wanted to
argue with them. I wanted to be like, ‘No,
that’s not how it is” But obviously I didn't,”
says Freya. The caring started to feel a lot like
suffocation. So Freya left. In September 2014,
she went to an expensive crammer with a
broad age range (15 to 20) and a hands-off
philosophy. “Obviously you had to come in
for registration, but how you worked and
what you did within your free periods was
down to you,” says Freya.

Freya cut back on GCSEs. Her
contemporaries were sitting 11. She was sitting
6. But when she sat her mocks, “Everything
set off again,” she says. Panic attacks,
insomnia, shutting herself in the bathroom.
“The trigger is exams,” says her mother.

But the real cause of her anxiety, as Freya
saw it, was not the actual results — the U she
got in maths or the D in English - but that

_she would be condemned for life. “I just
thought if I don’t do well, my life would be
over. | would be homeless. I was actually
very scared I was going to end up homeless.

“It’s [the pressure] built into school,” she
continues, “especially public schools. It’s like
a factory where they get you in, they get you
your grades and they push you out.” Success
is measured in A*s. “It’s about getting you into
one of the best universities.” Freya left at the
end of the spring term. »

The Times Magazine 25

Page 78



.“It was hard,” says Nadya, “because it
was a vast expense, hence why Tim is out
there earning money to pay for the mortgage
and school fees. And when, after all this
investment, you are still not getting the
end product you would hope to get, you do
suddenly question whether you've made the
right decision, because what suits one child
doesn’t necessarily suit another.”

Help arrived when the family decided
to try home schooling. Freya'’s programme,
organised by Simply Learning Tuition, started
in September 2015 with two tutors teaching
three GCSEs — maths and double English
at a cost of £1,500-£2,000 a month. Almost
overnight Freya went from dreading lessons
to happily sitting down to an hour of maths
in a makeshift classroom on the first floor.

“I've found out that I am actually much
smarter than I thought I was,” she says.
“I am easily capable of passing my exams.
It’s a simpler way of learning for me. You go
slower; you go through everything in a very
detailed way.” She’s discovered an interest in
acting and goes to drama classes. She is also
spared the recurring social death she suffered
in class - “The embarrassment of raising my
hand and saying the wrong thing” she explains.

Did Nadya ever consider tutoring her
daughter? “Gosh, no,” she replies. “That never
crossed my mind. Me trying to teach Freya
would not work. It’s been a total change of
routine as it is.” When Freya was at school,
her mother would run errands, go to the gym,
see friends, look after the home. “Now the
dynamic has changed. Everything happens
here.” Her mother has delineated her role.
“I've stepped back. If she has work to do
I don't say, ‘Do your work. She’s got to
deal with the tutor.”

A characteristic of tutored home schooling,
as opposed to the more traditional kind, is
its short-term nature. “Generally speaking,
because the socialisation aspect of school and
interacting with other children is so important,
unless there is a very clear reason for it, we
don’t tend to recommend it as a full-term
option,” says Anna Keogh, director of a
private-tuition company called Enjoy
Education. “We always say that once you
go down the home-school route, you've got
to get back into mainstream at some point,”
adds Stephen Spriggs.

And yet Alfie Friedman, 13, who has
had wall-to-wall home tutoring since last
October, plans to continue for the next five
years, through GCSEs and beyond. He lives
in east London with his mother, the actor,
director and singer Maria Friedman, his
father, the actor and singer Adrian Der
Gregorian, and his brother, Toby, 21. He
also has a live-in “manny”, Honza, who
now has a new role as a sports tutor.
They play squash together once a week.

.semeone about a subject because it’s boring ...

TCAN WEAR WHAT
I WANT - SO LONG
ASIT'S NOT PYJAMAS

Alfie, who has high-functioning autism
and a lively, demanding intelligence, went to
a private school in south London for children
with learning difficulties from the age of 6 to
10, and then, at the advice of the school, to a
mainstream private school a 40-minute drive
away. “Every single day Alfie would be ready
for school, and pretty well three or four times
a week I would have to pick him up for one
reason or another,” his mother recalls.

Autism is associated with hypersensitivity
to noise and smells, and his new school, with
multiple teachers and a variety of classrooms,
hit him hard. “Imagine breaking a laptop
against the floor and shooting it with an
AK-47 - that’s what it’s like,” Alfie explains.
“We hear the same things as anyone else,
but are more alert. Like, if a plane went over,
Mum wouldn’t think anything of it; she’'d
Jjust keep learning her lines. But I hear the
plane and the car and the gate being opened.
I am pretty much alert 24/7. That causes
some sleeping problems. But I have an
audiobook, so that helps.”

“He had issues with other children, noise,
overstimulation and smells — they made him
sick with headaches,” says his mother. “The
first few days were great,” says Alfie, “but
friends became enemies after that.

“At lunchtime I had a packed lunch and
wouldn't sit near anybody, just because they
would be talking about something irrelevant.
A lot of people thought I was unsociable,” he
continues. “But if you don’t want to talk to

I don’t want to be part of that conversation.”
“He became the saddest child,” says his
mother. “If we were driving, he would hide

in between the seats on the floor as we drove

past boys or the school. And then he would
get out and you could see him steeling himself
for the day. He was like a grey child, no
laughter, no skipping, no nothing.” He’d hiss
like an animal. Kick the chairs. Teachers
would refuse to teach him.

Maria worked to keep him in mainstream
education. “I very much wanted both my
children [Toby also has learning difficulties]
to be people who could manage in that
environment. I'd speak to all those mothers
in the playground, watching their children
fly and watching my own children drown.”
She recruited a tutor so that Alfie could have
one-to-one lessons at school. Therapists and
psychiatrists all suggested strategies. “I tried to
adapt that school, shove it into the shape that
he required, but ultimately he was surrounded
by people charging up and down corridors.”

Today, Alfie is thriving at home thanks
largely to a team of three tutors (reduced from
six) covering such subjects as maths, geography;,
history, coding, business studies and art.

“We took him out of school in October and
I went to Enjoy Education and said, ‘I want
a programme,” says Maria. Lessons take place
in the sitting room-cum-dining room in the
basement, which opens onto the garden,
and Alfie plans to sit Il GCSEs. His day is
structured as if he were at school, with a
timetable of lessons and a strict schedule with
built-in study periods and an hour for lunch. -
Maria has gone for the formal option. “There
should be no part that is pandering,” she says.
“The rest of the world is going to school. So
should he” He hangs out with friends once
a week at Chickenshed, a theatre company in
north London. This will increase to two days
from September. “Just to boost his social life,”
says his mother. “He needs to keep being
made aware of other people and their needs.”

When I arrive, Alfie is finishing a maths
lesson with tutor John Nicols, a former
secondary-school teacher. “With Alfie
it is completely, totally on his terms, so
I can always monitor how well he is paying
attention and can keep questioning him on
different aspects, some of which are very
advanced,” he says. “I wouldn't, in a million
years, be able to dedicate that level of
attention to someone in a mainstream school”

“John says I need to be ready when he
arrives, but he doesn’t care what I wear as
long as it’s not pyjamas,” says Alfie, adding
that one of the best things about being home
schooled is the clothing. “I don’t need to feel
I'm being discriminated against for wearing
trousers that are too long, for example, or
being constrained by a really cold shirt.”

“It is very, very expensive [about £37,000
a year),” says Maria. “It’s more expensive
than Eton, and Alfie doesn’t even do a full
day. But it’s worth every single penny. It’s
given us a life” m

The Times Magazine 27

Page 79



This page is left intentionally blank



@n the web - more stories to check out at themj.co.uk:

Hows
| Tackling poverty in England
{is costing local authorities
more than £12bn a year

|in additional social care
‘spending, a new report

by The Joseph Rowntree

Foundation has warned. The
report estimated that dealing
with poverty was costing
the public sector around
£69bn in extra costs, with
additional ‘knock on effects’
costing a further £8.7bn.

News
‘ Scottish ministers have
vowed to carry on with
their controversial plans to

appoint a named person
for every child despite a UK
Supreme Court ruling.

Best practice

Councils must recognise
that digitising public
services (right) is the key
to engaged communities,
writes Greg Thomas.

News
The proportion of complaints
upheld by the Local

Government Ombudsman
has risen by 5%, according
to the watchdog's latest
statistics. Some 51% of
investigations in 2015/16
were upheld, compared to
46% the previous year.

EDUCATION

Call to review home school rules

By Dan Peters -
Luton Council will call for a review of
home education regulations in a letter to
the Government amid concems about child
safeguarding.

Speaking after the Government responded
to a consultation on how to improve
information about children missing from
education, Luton’s corporate director for
children and learning, Sally Rowe, told The
MJ more still needed to be done.

Ms Rowe said the consultation — launched
in the wake of the Trojan Horse saga in
Birmingham and issues with schools in
Tower Hamilets — failed to address home
education.

Councils can monitor children receiving
home education where they are aware but
there is no compulsion for parents to register
their offspring and local authorities have no

Government, independent schools will now
be required to co-operate with councils in
relation to children who leave, making it
easier for councils to track youngsters.

But Ms Rowe called for a fresh
consultation addressing the issue of illegal
schools, and further legjslation and guidance.

She continued: ‘There is a lack of
clarity from Ofited and the Department for
Education (DfE) on the actual legal position
on what you do to stop illegal schools
operating. We want to work jointly with
them as the one thing the local authority can’t
do is close down illegal schools through the
legal system. Children are not getting the
education they’re entitled to.

“The Government didn’t consult on home
education but we’re continuing to raise this
issue with them.’

There has been growing fiustration and
anger in the local govemment sector that

Luton Council: concerned about children missing from education

issues that arise.

The Association of Directors of Children’s
Services (ADCS) has warned it is ‘unclear
how many pupils are being taught at
unregistered or illegal schools across the

time schools do not have legal status and,
as such, local authorities have long been
unable to assure themselves that learners are
safe, well and receiving suitable educational

experiences.’

power of entry. DAE and Ofsted have failed to do enough on  country at this time”. S D - S
Under proposed changes by the illegal schools while blaming councils for ADCS’ consultation response read: ‘Part- www.themj.co.uk/education
LEGAL THIRD SECTOR

Compensation order after defeat

Hastings Pier: council to pay compensation

Hastings BC has been ordered to
pay compensation to a business after
the authority shut down a pier over
safety concems. The council could
now face a multi-million pound
payout after its appeal was thrown
out by the Supreme Court.

Hastings had tried to compel
Panamanian pier owners Ravenclaw
to repair the structure in 2006 but
was forced to use emergency powers
to close it down.

The Supreme Court riled that

because the “true culprit Ravenclaw |

was beyond the reach of enforcement
procedures’ it was ‘faced with the
familiar problem of deciding which
of the surviving parties should bear
the loss’.

Council leader Clir Peter Chowney
said the authority would ‘robustly
challenge any large compensation
claims’. No compensation amount
has been confirmed.

www.themj.co.ulclegal

Charities’ plea for overhaul of social care services

A coalition of 16 Scottish
charities has called for a major
overhaul of Scotland’s social
care support services.

In a joint report, entitled
Shared ambition for the future
of social care in Scotland,
the third sector groups said
an independent commission
should be formed to look
at how the current system
supported disabled people and
their families.

The charities said current
work to integrate health
and social care services in
Scotland, which began in
April, offered a ‘timely
opportunity’ to look again
at how disabled people were
supported.

They claimed local
authorities in Scotland spent
£3.9bn a year on social care
support, but many disabled

people still go without the
assistance they need to work,
study or lead a normal life.

“The introduction of health
and social care integration
marks a seismic shift in the
way in which health and social
care services are delivered,’
said Inclusion Scotland chief
executive, Dr Sally Witcher.

‘It would therefore be timely
to establish an independent
commission to have a thorough
examination of the best way to
fund social care support and
ensure it plays a full role in
enabling people to really live
their lives - rather than just
stay alive. Such a commission
would be collaborative and
would be helpful to national
and local government and
disabled people themselves. [

‘We hope to have the
opportunities to make a

Dr Sally Witcher: It's timely
to establish an independent
comission

constructive contribution

to the development of a
new, effective way forward,
starting by articulating our
shared ambition for social
care support and using this
to inspire and galvanise
widespread action.’

www.themj.co.uk/third-

| sector

Thursday |4 August |2016

Page 81



This page is left intentionally blank



	Agenda
	2 Education Select Committee Co-Opted Members 2016/17
	4 MINUTES OF THE EDUCATION SELECT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 25 MAY 2016
	5 RESPONSES TO THE FIRST REPORT OF THE EDUCATION SELECT COMMITTEE
	Agenda Public Pack, 25/05/2016 Education Select Committee - Reports
	Agenda
	1 First Report of the Education Select Committee - The Education Landscape in Bromley
	Appendix 1: Education White paper and implications for Bromley
	Appendix 2: LA Statutory Duties



	10 EDUCATION SELECT COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME
	12a OVERVIEW OF ALTERNATIVE EDUCATION IN BROMLEY
	12b WRITTEN STATEMENT FROM HOME EDUCATOR
	12c HOME EDUCATION ARTICLE FROM THE TIMES MAGAZINE JULY 2016
	12d Article - Call to Review Home School Rules - The Municipal Journal- 4 August 2016

